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Chairman’s Statement

INTRODUCTION

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or “Ming Hing”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

During the year under review, Ming Hing continued to actively seek
business opportunities for its waterworks business by tendering for
government projects. To further diversify its income sources, the
Group also signed an agreement in December 2009 to acquire the
entire interest in Well Delight Holdings Limited (“Well Delight”),
allowing it to participate in the mining and resources-related industry
in Mongolia.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$676.0 million, representing an increase of 2.3% over last year
(2009: HK$660.9 million). Gross profit dropped by 37.2% to HK$31.4
million (2009: HK$50.0 million), which was mainly due to rising raw
material and labour costs. Moreover, as there were two new
waterworks maintenance contracts during the year, more setup costs
were incurred at the beginning of the contracts. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$17.2 million (2009: profit attributable
to owners of the Company was HK$6.4 million), including a one-off
provision for impairment of prepaid investments in Guangdong
Province of HK$3.7 million, professional fees and other expenses
incurred for acquiring interests in the mining business in Mongolia of
HK$8.0 million and depreciation on property, plant and equipment
of HK$9.0 million during the year. Basic loss per share was HK2.133
cents (2009: Basic earnings per share were HK0.713 cents). The
Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK1.2 cents per share,
totalling HK$9,775,000, during the year. No final dividend has been
declared by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

)

Waterworks business - Hong Kong Market

During the year under review, the Hong Kong market remained
as the major revenue contributor to Ming Hing, generating
HK$675.4 million (2009: HK$630.7 million), or nearly 100%
(2009: 95%) of total revenue. The main sources of income
included two water mains replacement and rehabilitation
projects awarded by the Water Supplies Department (“WSD”)
in the last financial year, which contributed revenue of
HK$142.1 million and accounted for 21% of total revenue.
Owing to the Group’s solid reputation built from over 40 years
of experience in Hong Kong’s water supply services sector,
Ming Hing also continued its success in bidding for two new
government water mains maintenance projects during the year
under review, which contributed revenue of HK$213.3 million,
accounting for 31.6% of the Group’s total revenue. In addition,
revenue from landslip prevention projects amounted to
HK$43.5 million (2009: HK$44.8 million) or 6.4% (2009: 6.8%)
of total revenue, representing a stable source of income to the
Group.

1. Projects On Hand

Water Mains Replacement and Rehabilitation
Projects

Works on two water mains replacement and rehabilitation
projects that the Group won in the last financial year have
been commenced since 2009. Involving approximately
150 kilometers of aged water mains, the projects, which
will be completed by 2013, are valued at HK$1 billion in
total. Project details are as follows:

- Stage 3 — mains in East Kowloon (package A)
(contract number: 7/WSD/08)

- Stage 3 — mains on Hong Kong Island South and
Outlying Islands (contract number: 18/WSD/08)
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Waterworks Maintenance Contracts

The Group also won two waterworks maintenance
contracts from WSD in July 2009, which will be worth
over HK$700 million in total upon completion by 2012,
Works on the projects have been started on 1 September
2009, and revenue contributions have been made to the
Group since the second half of the review year. Project
details are as follows:

- Term Contract For Waterworks District E — New
Territories East (contract number: 1/WSD/09(E))

- Term Contract For Waterworks District W — New
Territories West (contract number: 1/WSD/09(W))

The above contracts cover the waterworks maintenance
projects for the entire New Territories, where more than
half of Hong Kong’s population lives.

As waterworks maintenance contracts also include
providing upkeep services for treatment plants, Ming Hing
has extended its business to this area during the year,
based on experience gained from similar work completed
at the Group’s water plant in China in the past. In view of
some treatment plants in Hong Kong not duly operating
at their design capacity due to old age and fluctuation in
raw water quality, the Group has started to retrofit
accelators at Sha Tin Water Treatment Works where
inclined tube settlers technology has been used to
enhance performance. The project has completed the
first phase with the second phase in progress. The effort
being made in the Shatin project is expected to achieve
at least a 20% increase in output with improved settling
water quality. The Group expects this proven method
combined with its experience will attract more business
opportunities to the Group in Hong Kong in the future.
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Landslip Preventive Measures Works Contracts

Ming Hing further possesses two Landslip preventive
measures works contracts that were won from the Civil
Engineering and Development Department in the last
financial year. The total value for these two contracts is
approximately HK$122 million, with details as follows:

- 10-year extended LPM project, Kowloon and New
Territories (contract number: GE/2008/15)

- 10-year extended LPM project, New Territories and
Outlying Islands (contract number: GE/2008/08)

Works of these two contracts have been commenced in
December 2008 and January 2009 and will be completed
by December 2010 and August 2010 respectively.

Improvement of technology to boost
competitiveness

To strengthen the Group’s competitive advantages in
bidding for government projects, Ming Hing secured a
Compact Pipe Installer License with “Wavin”, the sole
global supplier of compact pipes. The Group has applied
the compact pipe method in a water mains replacement
and rehabilitation project (contract number: 7/WSD/08)
starting from last November. The trenchless technique
has the advantages of minimizing impact on road traffic,
trade and the general public, utilizing underground space
fully as well as making use of the existing aged water
mains alignment. With the help of the compact pipe
method, the Group can implement the project in a safe,
timely and cost-effective manner and at the same time,
maintain the highest quality standard. The Group has
undertaken a study to identify possible applications in
waterworks maintenance projects. It is expected that by
leveraging this advanced technology, the Group will be
in a more advantageous position to bid for future projects.
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Enhancing efficiency and stringent control of
costs

During the year, the Group’s gross profit dropped to
HK$31.4 million (2009: HK$50.0 million) with gross
margin declining to 4.6% (2009: 7.6%). This was mainly
due to increases in raw material and labour costs as well
as more set up costs incurred in the beginning of two
new waterworks maintenance contracts. As Hong Kong
and Mainland China pushed forward various infrastructure
projects to boost their respective economies during the
financial crisis, costs of materials, such as pipes and
fittings, asphalt, concrete, chemicals and steel, rose by
approximately 5% during the year. Labour costs also
increased due to a demand-over-supply situation for
engineers and skilled workers in the related fields.
Consequently, the Group has adopted an Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) system in mid-November 2009
to help improve operations in procurement, order
processing and inventory control. The ERP system duly
enhanced order processing efficiency and controlled
inventory levels, thus allowing for greater control over
cost of revenue.

Industry recognition

In recognition for its professionalism, Ming Hing has
continued to receive awards from different Hong Kong
Government departments during the year. They included
the following:

- Meritorious Prize (Renovation and maintenance
works) from the Labour Department’s Construction
Industry Safety Award Scheme 2009/2010

- Meritorious Prize (Safety Teams) from the Labour
Department’s Construction Industry Safety Award
Scheme 2009/2010

- Meritorious Prize (Public Works Sites — New Works)
from the Development Bureau’s Considerate
Contractors Site Award Scheme 2009
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Waterworks Business - The PRC Market

Operations at the water treatment plant in Qingyuan, the PRC,
continued to realize steady progress during the review period.
With the Group’s efforts to improve efficiency and manage
operating costs, coupled with rising demand for water
treatment services due to industrial development occurring
adjacent the plant, it expects the facility to contribute profits
to Ming Hing in the near future.

Acquisition of Mining Business in Mongolia

To further diversify its income sources, the Group signed an
agreement on 5 December 2009 to acquire the entire interest
in Well Delight, together with its subsidiaries which hold certain
coal mining licenses and coal, gold and copper exploration
licenses with respect to four mines located in Mongolia. The
Acquisition, which was completed on 17 June 2010, enables
the Group to expand its business scope to engage in
resources-related business in Mongolia.

Well Delight, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, possesses
the entire interest in Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC (“TNE”), which
holds four mining licenses for a coal mine in Tugrug Valley (the
“TNE Mine”), which is located approximately 170 kilometers
southeast of Mongolia’s capital city, Ulaanbaatar. The brown
coal deposit is in the Tugrug Valley and within the administrative
unit of Bayan Soum of Tuv (Central) Aimag (province) in
Mongolia. According to a technical report conducted by an
independent technical advisor, the TNE Mine has approximately
64.0 million tonnes of brown coal (measured and indicated) in
situ resources and an additional 27.9 million tonnes of inferred
resources.

Well Delight also holds two exploration licenses for gold and
copper deposits located in Gobi-Altai, Mongolia, two
exploration licenses for gold and copper deposits in Zavkhan,
Mongolia and three exploration licenses for coal deposits in
DundGobi, Mongolia. The Group will carry out further geological
and exploration works for these mines in the future.




Al =

REARR  AEGEERREER/AEET
KIRERABKIELIRER - AEER_-F
ZNFLABRSMERP=FNIKBRE
TRER  UERRLE-FHRFEREMN &
HOFNERREEKETREGLD  BtE
HESN T -HREREEXN ST EEIZE
FO U & R ©

REEINEER AR REF NI TOIRATIA
B kmmk R E—ZTFMAK &
BRI EEERREEKEIRE R
BAREEN  ME_LFZERTRNEE
7% DRIBETEKT70%N17% » FEPUREER T
BEEAREF TENSAETR @ ZET
B R850RNEKE @ BitAHREE
6,700,000,00078 7T ° AN + BT IR ZF
—ZFNAEELR 2 RERALEERT
2 BB R G EIE A SR R AR L
JE 58 & & L & 8 600,000,000/ 7T ° Ui,
SN BEEBBINRETTEARERZIER -
TEEHREITESITHRETR - EREEKBEL
2 AEFEKHIRABAEER - BBERRES
P o

BTN F T BRI B A R S BRI
% UERHBERPEHRAERSE L
FHEOT R  TNERE S B R F 3L R R IZ K
BILENNEHMRE  BHESER T —F
FRARBBGRA - RS EBERTE
AEBEABIERBERBINGE TEEAMS
WRARNEIE ARNFIST - ARINRAE - FIR
RAEBEHERRER

AEBENEHERREFAEFERATHE
BREMEEEE  UHIHERHEOLTTM
B0 REREFRBEBANEENWAK
TR G - M AR RE A
W o

—Z—ZFFH Annual Report 2010

EERE

Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, Ming Hing will continue to prudently operate the
waterworks business, which generates steady income for the Group.
As the Group won two new waterworks maintenance contracts in
July 2009 which last for three years, and two water mains
replacement and rehabilitation projects in last financial year which
last for four years, they will therefore continue to be steady sources
of revenue in the coming financial year.

The Group further sees opportunities arising from various government
projects that will be implemented in coming years. At the end of
April 2010, Stage 1 of the Hong Kong Government’s territory-wide
water mains replacement and rehabilitation programme was
substantially completed, while Stage 2 and Stage 3 with 70% and
17% completed respectively are in progress. The investigation and
design works of Stage 4, which involves 850 kilometers of water
mains at an estimated contract value of HK$6.7 billion in total, is
actively underway as well. In addition, the Government’s new Landslip
Prevention and Mitigation Programme was launched in late April
2010, which will systematically deal with both man-made slopes
and natural hillsides, and has an estimated annual expenditure of at
least HK$600 million. As well, with the accelerated implementation
of 10 large-scale infrastructure projects, a large number of
construction works, including water service engineering, are
expecting to be created. The Group will duly bid for related projects,
grasping fresh business opportunities ahead.

Ming Hing will also focus on developing the newly acquired mining
business in Mongolia, aiming to seize opportunities arising from
continuously growing demand for natural resources in Mongolia and
the PRC. An early study on drilling and water trenching works on
the TNE Mine has commenced. The Group anticipates that the TNE
Mine will start to generate income in late 2010. Based on a preliminary
business development plan, the Group intends to outsource its
mining operation to professional contractors, in order to reduce initial
capital expenditure, expedite production and in turn generate cash
flows as quickly as possible.

With the long-term goal of diversifying the Group’s business into a
Mongolian resources-related conglomerate, Ming Hing is confident
that its focus on this new area of business will broaden its income
sources and open new opportunities, thus generating better returns
to shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to the management and staff for their diligence and
dedication over the past year. With a comprehensive strategy in place
for enhancing efficiency, service quality and competitiveness, we look
forward to maintaining steady growth, and delivering satisfactory
returns for our shareholders.

YUEN Chow Ming
Chairman
16 July 2010
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HITES EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

FERBALE - 7358 - MITESE - ARE KA Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, aged 73, is an executive Director, the
SEEEFEREMA o —NAHF - RICEH Chairman and the founder of the Company and the Group.
HEM=—UEBARZAETIEAG (A Mr. YUEN and three other partners found Ming Hing Engineering
All) o —NAN\EF—A » R EMEREL Company (the “Partnership”) in 1967. In January 1987, Mr. YUEN,
R EMMNALA AT BB EK S R together with Mr. SO Yiu Cheung and two other partners, established
Ti2BRAA - BAREBESE Y, — - RELE Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company Limited and he was
RATEREREERE XHRBHARSNGE one of the founding directors. Mr. YUEN studied engineering science
TRREME  mKEIREgBRER=-TNF at “E A E R AZ” in the early 1960s and has over 39 years’

i HhRZHRHEBOREREEER experience in waterworks engineering, most time of which were
SERKKEE - REENR-_ZFZTNF+A devoted to developing and managing the Group’s waterworks
ZTNBEZERWITES - BRZEAKR - projects. Mr. YUEN was appointed as an executive Director on 29
RAEE—BHEEBERNSENMISHEE - BEX October 2004. Mr. YUEN has been since the inception of the business
BEHGIE - EHHERBEBEE - REER responsible for the marketing, formulation of corporate strategies,
[RIBSR A Z R o business planning and overall management of the Group. Mr. YUEN

is the father of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung.

FREEBEE - 4358 - NEBWTES - 2% Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, aged 43, is an executive Director, the Deputy
ERTBRBE  BEAEEREEREER Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and is

rEER - REFEENBIAAREZFHH responsible for the overall business management and corporate
B R NBEER N — NN T FEER development of the Group. Mr. YUEN graduated from the Imperial
TiREEL 84 - FER_ZTZTFESESE College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of London
BRREARBTIEHERELTSAMA - FREETL with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering in 1990.
BiZ2eg s RREKRIEMEeEE - Mr. YUEN also holds a master’s degree in business administration

RAEER—NN—FNMAREE - BltEE from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2000.
BESFEAEE KB IEEBERNT Mr. YUEN is a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
B BEATEARBAHEEZRLPTS and a member of Institution of Mechanical Engineers (UK).
TEZEEZLE - REER—NNANEFRAE Mr. YUEN joined the Group in 1991 and has since then been heavily

EVKGEEB TIEER AR CES - W= involved in all aspects relating to the waterworks business of the
EEMFARNA—BEZARAESEHNTE Group. He is a member of The 10" Committee of Changsha City
FoREERRERMIRALEEZF - Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. YUEN

became a director of Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company
Limited in 1996 and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Group on 2 June 2004. Mr. YUEN is the son of Mr. YUEN Chow
Ming.
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Mr. SO Yiu Cheung, aged 58, is an executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman of the Group and is responsible for the overall
project management of the Group. Mr. SO is also involved in the
formulation of corporate plans and strategies of the Group.
Mr. SO obtained his certificate in structural engineering from Hong
Kong Polytechnic in July 1973. Mr. SO is also an associate member
of the Institute of Plumbing in the UK. Mr. SO has over 34 years’
experience in waterworks engineering. Mr. SO joined the Group in
1985 as a partner to the Partnership and became one of the founding
partners of Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company Limited in
1987. Mr. SO was appointed as an executive Director on 29 October
2004.

Mr. HO Hin Hung, Henry, aged 53, is an executive Director.
Mr. HO has over 27 years of experience in investment management,
investment banking and research. In the past ten years, Mr. Ho
worked for several internationally prestigious investment banks
heading their research departments. He has been a director of X)&
K+ 77 # ZER D A BR A ) (Tianjin Tasly Pharmaceutical Joint Stock
Company Limited), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, since 24 March 2009. During the period from 1994 to
1999, Mr. Ho served as a part-time member of the Central Policy
Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Ho holds a degree of Master of Arts in Accounting and
Finance from the University of Lancaster, United Kingdom. Mr. HO
was appointed as an executive Director on 15 March 2010.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis, aged 42, is an executive Director,
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. Mr. CHEUNG has
over 16 years of experience in accounting and financial management.
Prior to taking up the above-mentioned posts of the Company, he
has been the chief financial officer of the China division of a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. CHEUNG holds a Master’s
degree in Commerce from the University of New South Wales,
Australia. Mr. CHEUNG is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Australian Society of Certified
Practicing Accountants. Mr. CHEUNG was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 October 2008.
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MALE - 4357 MITES - MEER—N Mr. LIM Siong, Dennis, aged 43, is an executive Director. Mr. LIM
NEFEERBEBEIRBHEEEER - M is a graduate of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in hospitality
EERSHBEMEMAREEBELELES - management in 1990. He has substantial experience in the
MEENRB R —HEEBRBE AR TIE - 23E exploration and mining industry in Mongolia. Mr. Lim also possesses
DREHEE M RIS RTISHEREETR o 4K a wealth of experience in consumer products and sales and
EERZZT—ZF A+ EEEZET AT marketing in Asia Pacific Region as he worked for a USA multinational
BE- corporation before. Mr. LIM was appointed as an executive Director
on 17 June 2010.

EEBEE 4057 WITES - 5EED R Mr. WONG Tak Chung, aged 49, is an executive Director.
AREHEEREEeRBEAESFET 2 ER Mr. WONG is a fellow member of the Institute of Commercial
28 - HE_TEN\FTAF - BAER Management in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of
BEEREEEBRAR (HERERER () Directors respectively. He was a director of Fortuna International
BRRAF) ZESE - ZAal 2RO Holdings Limited (renamed Goldin Financial Holdings Limited) until
FIRET - BEEER_ZT-ZFA+EAR December 2008, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
BEERBITES - of the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was appointed as an executive
Director on 17 June 2010.

ENEBISH Burenkhuut 4% - 49733 * $117& Mr. ENEBISH Burenkhuu, aged 49, is an executive Director.
% o ENEBISHAC AR — AL FEENT G Mr. ENEBISH graduated from the Geological Faculty of Mongolian
THEREMER  WHAHE TRESEN - Polytechnic University with a degree in geological engineering in
ENEBISHE 4 1A 5 o Bl 52 32 S el I L At B 1984. Mr. ENEBISH has over 25 years of experience in dealing with
BAEMEREIE S mBEEA - THE copper and other deposits evaluation and mining exploration works
KB - ENEBISHEAR T —ZF AT+t in Mongolia. Mr. ENEBISH was appointed as an executive Director
HEZERWITESE - on 17 June 2010.

BYEHITES INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

RUUEHT - 615%  RZZEZTRF+—A+ Professor LEUNG Yee Tak, aged 61, is an independent
—BREZRTABIIENITES - BHFEIFE non-executive Director and was appointed on 11 November 2005.
W {RRA AT I K 2P B -2 - 128 Professor LEUNG holds a master’s degree of science, a doctorate
BB R TEE L8N - FAERBEERMN degree of science and a doctorate degree of philosophy from the

rEeLABNERAEMBSEFSE I University of Aston in Birmingham in the UK. Professor LEUNG is a
FEEBRTARBRERE B - fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society, a fellow of the Royal

Institution of Chartered Surveyor, and he is currently the Chair
Professor of the Department of Building and Construction of the
City University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen, aged 48, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed on 20 February 2009.
Mr. LIAO has over 24 years’ experience in the trade and commerce
industry. Mr. LIAO is currently the general manager of the corporate
development division of Sky Holdings Group Limited. Mr. LIAO holds
a Joint-honors degree in Chemistry with Management Studies from
the University of London. Mr. LIAO returned back to Hong Kong in
1985 and had held senior management positions in both international
and local listed and private companies since then. Mr. LIAO also
serves in various non-profit organizations and is the member of
Guangxi Qinzhou Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
the Vice-President of Guangxi Youth Entrepreneur Association, the
Vice-Chairman of Guangxi Guilin Youth Federation, the Executive
Member of Guangxi Qinzhou Overseas Friendship Association and
the Committee Member of Guangxi Youth Federation.

Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie, aged 45, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed on 15 October 2008.
Mr. WONG has over 16 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. Mr. WONG is currently a director of TAG
Aviation Asia Limited and Flight Training Adelaide Pty Ltd. Mr. WONG
is also the chief financial officer of Young Brothers Aviation Ltd.,
which is a company with global operation and whose major business
involves investment and management of aviation related assets. Mr.
WONG holds a Bachelor of business degree in Accounting from
Curtin University of Technology and a Bachelor’'s degree in Chinese
Law from Tsinghua University. Mr. WONG is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Australian Society
of Certified Practicing Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MA Ving Hoo, aged 42, is the Deputy General Manager (Hong
Kong Engineering) of the Group and is responsible for the
management of the Group’s projects. Mr. MA has about 20 years’
experience in the field of civil engineering. Mr. MA obtained a higher
diploma in Building from the City University of Hong Kong in 1990
and a master’s degree of Business Administration from the University
of Hull, the United Kingdom in 1999 and a bachelor’s degree of
Science in Construction Engineering and Management from the
Queen’s University of Brighton, the United States in 2005. Mr. MA is
also the Chartered Member of Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB)
and American Institute of Constructors (MAIC). Mr. MA joined the
Group in June 2005.




—Z—ZFFH Annual Report 2010

EEREREEAERHE

Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management

BEBEE 585 0 AEEFBLE (HE Mr. LIU Hing Fook, aged 58, is the Deputy General Manager (Hong

TiEEW)  aEERASEMNIEER - Kong Engineering) of the Group and is responsible for the
BERER—NEANFEGBIRETIETER management of the Group’s projects. Mr. LIU holds a bachelor’s
TARTIRBIPEET B o FHRAEB=T— degree of Science in Civil Engineering from London Thames

FRERER  HP+EFEBRSMREE Polytechnics in 1976. He has over 31 years of management
BRRAT - BEBTEANE RN LE#AIE experience, with 17 years working with Gammon Construction Ltd.,
B ZFHERE T ARRENZEERES - 7 managing large and technically complex projects, covering all aspects
WA B RKEER - ARSERE - =5 of civil construction, such as Tai Po Water Treatment, Western
BRVHERAEE - WERKEBTARKS Harbour Crossing, Route 3 Country Park Section, Mody Road
NMORABFIERE - EIMAREEZA] - K2 Subway for KCRC and Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor.
BURFIREET ABERIEE KA TR « B4 Before joining us, Mr. LIU worked on the mega project for Venetian

RZZEZNFZAMALREEH - Development in Macau. Mr. LIU joined the Group in March 2009.
HRAKLE 575 AEESKIER L Mr. CHONG Leung Kit, aged 57, is the Senior Project Manager of

BEEEBHMARKEREBANIR - HiEA the Group and is responsible for the management of waterworks
KEERITARTIRBE L8N - HAEERELT maintenance project at New Territories East. Mr. CHONG holds a
ATEEEHAR =T —FITIRBEENER bachelor’s degree of Science in Civil Engineering from the Chu Hai
KB o HAERAKERREERINASPIRES College. Mr. CHONG has over 31 years’ project management
RAR - WHELELIEARATE - AKH experience. Mr. CHONG worked for Gammon Construction Ltd. since
R E TR - ISR EMIERE  EHELED graduation from college and had participated several mega
BRELR - FE4ERZZEZTMF+—AM construction projects, such as the foundation work of Taikoo Shing,
AREH - extension of Queen’s Mary Hospital, improvement works for Lung
Cheung Road and Ching Cheung Road. Mr. CHONG joined the Group
in November 2004.

FXR &zt - 3557  NEESRES R TR Ms. FONG Man Yan, aged 35, is the Senior Commercial and
AR - BEARSERKAIES R TRHA Quantity Surveying Manager of the Group and is responsible for the
EIE - RHEBREMNWHEABIEERLT management of cost planning and quantity surveying works of the
EIRESELTBEURBEARNEREFEAEE Group. Ms. FONG holds a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in

LB - FRTEREEHIEEN T =F Integrated Engineering with Industrial Management from the
MR E&E - BR-ZZZFT-F+FAMA University of Liverpool in the UK and a master’s degree of
REH o Construction Project Management from the University of Hong Kong.

Ms. FONG has about twelve years of quantity surveying experience
in the construction field. Ms. FONG joined the Group in October
2002.

EREELT 400 AEEENKE - B8R Dr. WONG Chun Hung, aged 40, is the Contract Manager of the
REEMNIRERE - —NWANFETZANA Group and is responsible for the project management of the Group.
REECH REEREHHERESHE L Prior to joining the Group in December 1999, Dr. WONG taught in
BT EE B AT AW T A2 YR R AR the Department of Physics and Materials Science of the City
BREREMN B2 — W NL=FK University of Hong Kong as a temporary lecturer during his post-
—NANFESEEREBEIREELEMR doctoral research in fluid dynamics and acoustics. Dr. WONG
TEREBHELENM - obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering and doctorate degree
of Philosophy in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in
1993 and 1998, respectively.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of each member of the Group are set forth in
note 16 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of maintenance
and construction works on civil engineering contracts in respect of
waterworks engineering, road works and drainage and slope
upgrading for the public sector in Hong Kong, as well as the provision
of water supply services in Mainland China.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 39 to 143.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK1.2 cents per
share, totalling HK$9,775,000 which was paid on 26 January 2010.

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 144.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year ended 31 March 2010, together with the
reasons thereof, are set out in notes 26 and 27 respectively to the
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 28 to the financial
statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
of the Company on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. YUEN Chow Ming (Chairman)
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. HO Hin Hung, Henry
(Appointed on 15 March 2010)
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis
Mr. LIM Siong, Dennis
(Appointed on 17 June 2010)
Mr. WONG Tak Chung
(Appointed on 17 June 2010)
Mr. ENEBISH Burenkhuu
(Appointed on 17 June 2010)
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Professor LEUNG Yee Tak

Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen

Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie

Mr. SUN Bo Quan (Resigned on 1 April 2009)

In accordance with article 86(3) of the Articles, Mr. HO Hin Hung, Henry,
Mr. LIM Siong, Dennis, Mr. WONG Tak Chung and Mr. ENEBISH
Burenkhuu shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. YUEN Chow Ming,
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election. All the other Directors will
continue in office.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Director, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Company considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, Mr. YUEN Wai Keung and Mr. SO Yiu Cheung,
each of them has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 1 March 2009. Either the
Company or the executive Director may, after one year of the
commencement date of their respective contracts, terminate the
appointment of the executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than six months' written notice of termination or by payment
in lieu of such notice.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on
15 October 2008. Either the Company or the executive Director may,
after one year of the commencement date of the contract, terminate
the appointment of the executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than three months' written notice of termination or by
payment in lieu of such notice.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr. HO Hin Hung, Henry has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 15 March 2010.
Mr. LIM Siong, Dennis, Mr. Wong Tak Chung and Mr. ENEBISH
Burenkhuu, each of them has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on
17 June 2010. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meetings in accordance with the Articles.
Either the Company or the executive Director may, after one year of
the commencement date of their respective contract, terminate the
appointment of the executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than three months’ written notice of termination or by
payment in lieu of such notice.

Professor LEUNG Yee Tak, an independent non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
fixed term of one year commencing on 1 November 2009 and may
be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.
Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen, an independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a fixed term of half year commencing on 1 February 2010 and
may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice. Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie, an independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a fixed term of one year commencing on 1 October 2009 and
may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of
service with the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

The Company's policies concerning emoluments of the Directors
are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on the basis of the
relevant Director's experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(i) non-cash benefits may be provided to the Directors under their
remuneration package; and

(i) the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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DIRECTORS’ AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of continuing connected transactions which also constitute
related party transactions for the year are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

On 16 November 2005, Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering
Company Limited, as Lessee, and Grand Media Limited, as Lessor,
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) regarding
the premises of Units 1809-1812, 18th Floor, Telford House, No. 16
Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Lease Agreement was
renewed on 5 March 2008 with identical terms and conditions except
for a lease term from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2011 at a monthly
rental of HK$82,000. Mr. Yuen Chow Ming, Mr. Yuen Wai Keung and
Mr. So Yiu Cheung, all being executive Directors of the Company,
have equity interest of 34%, 33% and 33% respectively in Grand
Media Limited. Therefore, Grand Media Limited is an associate of
the three Directors of the Company and the renewal of the Lease
Agreement amounted to a continuing connected transaction exempt
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, such
transaction was entered into by the Group:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to/from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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EERENZER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

PREATSIMARMIFESAFTHEIN - SESHER Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no Director
BARRBSEAEIMERRRAREFEE L had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
BERAEBEFEREZEREHNZEEL any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which

MEEAEDER ° the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
BEERAATIREEK EZE 2R DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
B REHERG 2 UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

—E-TF=A=+—H EFRELRQF As at 31 March 2010, the Directors had the following interests in the
K E AR A B 2 Bt AR R A IR IE shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
BELEEED ((BERBAEKEH]) F352 corporations which were recorded in the register required to be kept
ARV ARRBIFE 2 REAMZ #Exs by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and
SIRIE EMAREFETEFR HHITLEST Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the
B ([#EEESFR]) BRE AN R R P 2 18 Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
=N Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”):

(a) AAEAREREME0.5EBTZE (@) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.05

BERzRRE each of the Company
R R
BMAB DL
Approximate
B Mg BERAEE percentage of
EEnE et Capacity/ Number of shareholding in
Name of Director Notes Nature of interest Shares held the Company
RIS & Mr. YUEN Chow Ming 1 TEHEE R 453,888,000 54.96%
Interest of
controlled corporation
RiERLE Mr. YUEN Wai Keung 2 XEHEEz ER 453,888,000 54.96%
Interest of
controlled corporation
(EPN: 33 5,704,000 0.69%
Personal
HReEiE Mr. SO Yiu Cheung 3 XEHEE  ER 453,888,000 54.96%
Interest of
controlled corporation
(BN %= 3,000,000 0.36%
Personal
RENEE Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis (BN 353 8,000,000 0.97%
Personal
RUABHE Professor LEUNG Yee Tak (BN 25 600,000 0.07%
Personal
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(a) RAERQXFERMEECISE T ZE
BRCER (&)
et -

0

1l£453,888,000% A% 17 LARobinhoods
Development Limited ([Robinhoods])
2% EERL - HAFAble Promise
Holdings Limited ([ Able Promise])
BERARNTRREAE LT IZ
T =92 —1%ZE#  Able Promise
HEMBEEL2ERE - BUREES
MEREEN - RIBBEEWAR BES
ZERMD PR o

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(a) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

M

The 453,888,000 Shares are registered in the name of
Robinhoods Development Limited (“Robinhoods”), of which
Able Promise Holdings Limited (“Able Promise”) is entitled to
exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third of the voting power
at general meetings of the Company. Able Promise is wholly-
owned by Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, who is therefore deemed to
be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

(2)  15458,888,0008% 1% 15 LA Robinhoods (2) The 453,888,000 Shares are registered in the name of
2 BEERT - EFfForemost Time Robinhoods, of which Foremost Time Holdings Limited
Holdings Limited ([ Foremost Time ) (“Foremost Time”) is entitled to exercise, or control the exercise
BRENRARRBIREAS E1TE LS of, one-third of the voting power at general meetings of the
11 =5 2 —1%ZEH# - Foremost Time Company. Foremost Time is wholly-owned by Mr. YUEN Wai
HERERLERERE - BUREES Keung, who is therefore deemed to be interested in these Shares
NEAE G - REREERRAES under the SFO.

ZERD PR -

(3)  11£453,888,000/% }% 1% LA Robinhoods (38) The 453,888,000 Shares are registered in the name of
2 HEEFD - KPR Group Honour Robinhoods, of which Group Honour Assets Limited (“Group
Assets Limited ([Group Honour]) & Honour”) is entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-
HERARRBIRRAG E1T{E sz H1T third of the voting power at general meetings of the Company.
=% 2 —12Z# > Group Honourgq Group Honour is wholly-owned by Mr. SO Yiu Cheung, who is
BB EERERA c WURBESF K therefore deemed to be interested in these Shares under the
GG - BHRTFEEERAREZ SFO.

ZRRM P R -
(b) REBLIEzZROZ2EZER (b) Beneficial interests in the shares of associated
corporations
REBLEEEZ
RH&E
Number of shares REBRNED L
M EEEE held in the Approximate

EEHE k23 Name of associated associated percentage of

Name of Director Notes corporation corporation shareholding

[RIEASE& Mr. YUEN Chow Ming 1 Robinhoods PY % four 33.33%

Able Promise — % one 100%

[RIE®REAE Mr. YUEN Wai Keung 2 Robinhoods POk four 33.33%

Foremost Time —f% one 100%
BREHERAE Mr. SO Yiu Cheung 3 Robinhoods PO R four 33.33%
Group Honour — % one 100%
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EERARTAREEBEE 2R DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
D REBRGD 2ERE @ UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Sz

(b) REBLIEZROZERER (b) Beneficial interests in the shares of associated

(&) corporations (Continued)

Bat - Notes:

(1) SEHREAZ (D B Able Promisef§A -+ 1M (1) The four shares are held by Able Promise, a company wholly-
Able Promise & RIS E2EHE owned by Mr. YUEN Chow Ming. Accordingly, Mr. YUEN Chow
ZAF o Bt RIMAALEWR B Ming is deemed to be interested in such four shares in
A Robinhoods#Z PO A& B 7 ) #EE 5 © Robinhoods.

(2 ILPURERE {7 B Foremost Time# A » 1M (2)  The four shares are held by Foremost Time, a company wholly-
Foremost Time & RIESR L2 EHRE owned by Mr. YUEN Wai Keung. Accordingly, Mr. YUEN Wai
ZNE e Bt - REBEERR A Keung is deemed to be interested in such four shares in
& Robinhoods#% U R A% 7 H B) i 25 Robinhoods.

(3)  UEPUARA& 1) FaGroup Honourds A -+ (38)  The four shares are held by Group Honour, a company wholly-
Group Honour B#r R Se £ 2 AR owned by Mr. SO Yiu Cheung. Accordingly, Mr. SO Yiu Cheung
ZAT] o B - BRIRF R AR AR is deemed to be interested in such four shares in Robinhoods.

BRobinhoodsi% PU B& B 15 B9 A &5 o

(c) REBERHOZER (c) Long position in the underlying Shares
BBEARANRZZEEZRF_A=-TH Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
BERMHERRETE (BEFBER on 25 February 2006 (details are set out in note 27 to the
BHRERMET27) - BT EFEKRE financial statements), certain Directors were granted share
R ERE - MR —E—FF=H options to subscribe for the Shares, details of share options
=+ —HERITERA TITEAER outstanding and exercisable as at 31 March 2010 were as
BEFHBEWAT - follows:
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D REERD 2ER @)

(c) REERGOZRE ®

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(c) Long position in the underlying Shares

(Continued)
BREVR
HHRBRGEA
Number of
underlying
Shares comprised TEs SRITEE
EERE BHAS &t in the Exercisable Exercise
Name of Director Date of grant Capacity share options period price per share
FHHEEE  MYUENChowMing  —ZEAFNA-+ER  E#fEA 1,000,000 —TEAFNA-+HAZR 0.3858
25 August 2009 Beneficial owner “E-ZE\AZ1-H HK$0.385
25 August 2009 to
31 August 2012
BEREE  McYUENWaiKewng  —ZZASNA-+ER  ERBAA 1,000,000 —ZFEAFNA-+HAZ 0.3858 T
25 August 2009 Beneficial owner ZE-ZFN\E=1-H HK$0.385
25 August 2009 to
31 August 2012
BRAEE M. UAOCheungTin, Z“EEAENA-THER  EBEEAEA 600,000 —EENENAZTHAZE 0.385 T
Stephen 25 August 2009 Beneficial owner “E-ZE\A=t-H HK$0.385
25 August 2009 to
31 August 2012
TURKE M. WONGlapShek, —ZFZNFNAZTER  BRABA 600000 —ZTENFNA-+HAZR 0.385% T
Eddie 25 August 2009 Beneficial owner ZE-ZE\AZ1-H HKS0.385

BREXWEEN R_FT—FTF=A
=t—B EEREREZBBRANE
VAN SRR TR EL PPN Thrdlis v~
MR %A R IR E 75 R B R A
FEI52MGR/ARLH N E L MIRIFIRET
ARG AR R R MR A 2 A A

B o
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25 August 2009 to
31 August 2012

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
Directors and their associates, had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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EEWERONES 2ER DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

br EXTESRARR REAEEE 2 KK Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ Interests
NI RGD < w5 B R B mEfaer in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its Associated
Frt e & N » FANF AL (] IS R B A (R &= Corporations” above and note 27 to the financial statements, at no
FURES A 2R BIRMI8HR L FEE time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
AREWEARR 2R D R EH MR acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
A - SR EMEITEBERES AR any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
FAB AR MBI EMZH - BEES age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
HRES A 2B RNE 2 F LR EM or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Hix ABRESHBETR - Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

FTERRRAD T RS R AEERERKR SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
R IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

BEERAN - RIBFEHLEEEMEXVESE The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
EAFHFEZETERREZME R - R section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2010,

ZE-ZEFE=ZA=FT—HAEARRATEEITR so far as the Directors are aware of, the following substantial
RE5%I A Er FERRER - FIEW shareholders had interests in 5% or more of the Company’s issued
™~ share capital:
REAZRE Long position in the Shares
RN B R
BB DL
Approximate
FERRAZRE 51 Mg BEEROEA percentage of
Name of Capacity/ Number of shareholding in
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held the Company
Robinhoods EREEA 453,888,000 54.96%
Beneficial owner
Able Promise REGEE 2 453,888,000 54.96%
Interest of controlled corporation
Foremost Time REGEE #Ewn 453,888,000 54.96%
Interest of controlled corporation
Group Honour REGEE #Ean 453,888,000 54.96%

Interest of controlled corporation

B EXFIEEEN R-_ZT—ZF=H Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2010, no other interest or
=+—H ARARBEIHRBABEOZE short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
3361 FE 2 MR A MW MDA AR were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
RAIRED MABREA R (D P s SR B o pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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ZEBREA TR

B

ARAEZ BT S F BN M B RA M
27 °

FTEHREBREF

AEEISES - HOEREEEEERSE
s B RERRBEYEZ B L
mT

Wz
- &AEF 72.0%
— AREFA&: 100.0%
DBEH
- RADBE®E 20.3%
— ARSBEEAER 42.0%
BEEYR
— RAEER 11.3%
— AREEEAEET 36.6%

BEEE R R FEMBEASERBRR (3
BT BEARFDHITRAES%)
RAKRE LA 2 EBEF - DBEENEER
BEENEmES -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has any competing interests in any business
or has any interest in any business that may constitute direct or
indirect competition with the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
27 to the financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of total revenue, total sub-contracting costs and
purchases of materials for the year attributable to the Group’s major
customers, sub-contractors and suppliers are as follows:

Revenue

— the largest customer 72.0%
- five largest customers combined 100.0%
Sub-contracting costs

— the largest sub-contractor 20.3%
— five largest sub-contractors combined 42.0%
Purchases of materials

— the largest supplier 11.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 36.6%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s major customers, sub-contractors or suppliers noted
above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out on pages 31 to 36 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public at the date of this
report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounted to
HK$120,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
11 November 2005, with written terms of reference set out in “A
Guide For The Formation Of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants adopted as the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review the financial reporting procedures
and internal control and provides guidance in relation thereto. The
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie (as Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Professor LEUNG Yee Tak and Mr. LIAO Cheung
Tin, Stephen. The annual results for the year ended 31 March 2010
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the end of the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

The Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited
YUEN Chow Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2010
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TEERERSTH THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES
EEERE BERARQRNELAREEERHE The Board considers that good corporate governance is essential
AR MBI EEMBERE - BREN S8 for enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
TEER - BAlt - EERAERTHFRKEND investment public and other shareholders. Therefore, the Directors
X¥TATH EFSeTRHRIENCEEARE are dedicated to maintain high standard corporate governance
] AR AERETERANEE - FARETT practices. The Board reviews its corporate governance practices
RAFHERNE M EEGH A © from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate
governance.

REE-ZT—TF-A=+—HILFE K The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set
NR—EEF EMRAIN SR 2 out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
ERERSFA([=rRI]) Z @A SFRHES » set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2010.

EEg BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EECHABN\BRTES R =BT IFH The Board currently consists of eight executive Directors and three

TESHEK - NBRITESHIEEREFMA independent non-executive Directors. All eight executive Directors

HEABRANEAG (BFEETRR ETREDE are responsible for dealing with the Group’s business in accordance

BAEEZER - 2BEE (BEBIIED with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not limited

TER)ERAEEMEXERERNEE#E to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including independent

1ThER o non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and
material matters of the Group.

EEe/ALPIEERERMRE 258 The role of the Board includes overseeing the strategic development,
g REfpER - £¢&¢ HAELE - ARARE business planning, risk management, annual and interim results, and
BEHMERLERVBEIE ZEFERHHE other significant operational and financial matters of the Group. Major
AEERENTZEECEEE  BERESE corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to
FRPAFERRYELAAERINIRRES the management include the preparation of annual and interim
Gz RITEERESS RN EBRBER financial statements to be approved by the Board before public

THE - BT RMNEBESIEHIE R E B TR reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted
B URHERETHEBETHAT « FAE by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal
WOl - RETEBE  ESgrH8TE controls and risk management procedures, and ensuring of
EOUMNEH ZBERFECARTSE - compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and

regulations. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets
regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.
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RE-T-TF=AS+—ALFE EF
LEL LIS £ B T s e
ZEUURZABEEENT -

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in
the regular full Board meetings and other committee meetings for
the year ended 31 March 2010 are as follows:

SRERERE/ETRY
No. of meetings attended/held
EZg ENZESSE REZESSE FMZEEEER

2EEHER Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Regular Full Committee Committee Committee
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITES Executive Directors
RWA (L) YUEN Chow Ming (Chairman) 8/10 - - -
[ YUEN Wai Keung 10/10 - 2/2 4/4
g SO Yiu Cheung 8/10 - - -
EER HO Hin Hung, Henry 0/10 - - -
(R=Z-ZE=RTHBEZM) (appointed on 15 March 2010)
KEX CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis 10/10 - - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
2= LEUNG Yee Tak 10/10 2/2 2/2 4/4
BREX LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen 8/10 2/2 - -
Eal WONG Lap Shek, Eddie 10/10 2/2 2/2 4/4

BUERTERZHBERFE LMHRAZHE
EMEVNAAEEEEENGHEES
e ANRIBBEESEIIIENTESRIELE
MHAEIAGEL 2 FEB L MERRE -
FTUASKEBEENEERBIIFNTES
THHR-_ZThF+A—REAH—F mE
RAELCERENZTABIIENTES
Hm—T—TFE - A—AREAHEE - MBNU
EHRSCEEFETABLIENTES 1T
HR-ZEThF+—A—HBRAH—F - TF
BN IEITEE 2RI — B —E
REMBAE TR - SARKBEMZRZM
BIRARARREBEF RS LHERE - EER
B BENIIERTESH/E LTHRAE
KIRICI5in 1w Avik ==
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The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie
has appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The Company
has received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie has been re-appointed
as an independent non-executive Director for a period of one year
commencing from 1 October 2009, while Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin,
Stephen has been re-appointed as an independent non-executive
Director for a period of half year commencing from 1 February 2010,
while Professor LEUNG Yee Tak has been re-appointed as an
independent non-executive Director for a period of one year
commencing from 1 November 2009. All the appointments of
independent non-executive Directors may be terminated by either
party by giving one month’s written notice and subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles. The Directors are of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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REE_T—ZEF=A=+—H1LFE - During the year ended 31 March 2010, ten full Board meetings were
TTHRESE2ESE - E%@%aﬁ%ﬂﬁ’ held. Minutes of the Board meetings are being kept by the company
AARNRZARIWMETE  WHARRES secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by the
RAZBANER] - Directors and auditors of the Company.

IRRTBRASZAG THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ERERITHAREBMMTRATET - &5 The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
TRMNBE UBERASANELIMRER held by two different persons and each of them plays a distinctive
o FERMALEEEEERGEAEE role to ensure their respective independence and accountability. The
ZIEERE c (THAHRERLEAEASE Chairman, Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, is responsible for the leadership
B BEEBERRLEERE - RMBALE and formulation of corporate strategies of the Group. The Chief
RREBEEIRNE - EF2E—TERE Executive Officer, Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, is responsible for the overall

HRAREFISEITEZ [EERSREH business management and corporate development of the Group.
ABBE]—FNA - Mr. YUEN Chow Ming is the father of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung. Further

details on the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 17 under the
section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

EERHFERFI2EESTE MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

AT BN TR RIS+ P o R 2ESF The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in appendix 10
Al - {EREEBEBEJRFMTATH - FHT to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
BEERBEHNSBIIFNTEEZAE securities transactions. The obligations to comply with the Listing

BREHEET LRI ZEE - ARAFE Rules are set out in the terms of the service contract of each executive
MESELHFTEENR  MBEESHEER Director and the letter of appointment of each independent non-
REE-Z—TF-A=+—HILFE & executive Director. The Company has made specific enquiries with
E-—HETRETRIMEA BT ° the Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they have

complied with the requirements set out under the Model Code for
the year ended 31 March 2010.

EREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

BEZZESR - ABUIENITESAR - The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
RlBESATE - RUAE ?ﬂx&gﬁif‘i Directors, namely, Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie, Professor LEUNG
EoFUAKRHEEBEESTERRIBR Yee Tak and Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen. Mr. WONG Lap Shek,

ISR WABZZESEF - Eddie, who possesses professional accounting qualifications and
relevant accounting experience, is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of the Audit
Committee are to review the Group’s financial information, to
supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control systems,
and to maintain relationship with the auditors of the Company. The
Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular reviews
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2010 have
been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee before
submission to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director,
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung (Chairman), and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Professor LEUNG Yee Tak and
Mr. WONG Lap Shek, Eddie.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to assist and
make recommendations to the Board to ensure that all the
nominations are fair and transparent. The work of the Nomination
Committee includes reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change and
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung (Chairman), and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Professor LEUNG Yee Tak and Mr.
WONG Lap Shek, Eddie.

The key responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review
and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for remuneration of the Directors and the senior management and
determine the remuneration package of the Directors and the senior
management.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of remuneration of all the Directors and
the senior management. The Remuneration Committee considered
that the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management were fair and reasonable. In forming its view, the
Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy in relation to that of comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 25 February
20086. Its purpose is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that the eligible participants (including the Directors) have made or
may make to the business development of the Group. Please refer
to note 27 to the financial statements for the principal terms of the
share option scheme.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a sound and
effective system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions on
the adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system, covering its financial operational, compliance control and
risk management functions.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external professional
adviser to review the effectiveness of its system of internal control.
Relevant applicable recommendations made by such adviser would
be implemented by the Group in stages to further enhance its internal
control policies, procedures and practices.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company endeavors to maintain a long-term relationship with
its shareholders and investors with an adherence to the principles
of integrity, regularity and high transparency and disclose the required
information in compliance with the Listing Rules. To ensure effective
and clear communications with the investors, analysts and fund
manager, meetings are arranged and conducted by the executive
Directors and designated senior executives according to established
practices of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group, and of results and cash flows for the period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 37 to
38 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton, have been employed
to provide audit services to the Group for the year ended 31 March
2010. The remuneration paid or payable to Grant Thornton in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March
2010 amounted to HK$2,773,000 and HK$77,000 respectively.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ming Hing
Waterworks Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

16 July 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

bz — 2=

—ZT—TFE= §=+—H ILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-EF —ZETNF
2010 2009
K e+ FExT T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
C=p7l)
(Restated)
W #= Revenue 5 675,959 660,870
W 2 B AN Cost of revenue (644,566) (610,920)
EF Gross profit 31,393 49,950
H b A Rz Other income and gains 5 99 7,312
DI REERXT Distribution and selling expenses - (2,936)
TEAX Administrative expenses (45,234) (39,563)
RE (B]R) =7 Operating (loss)/profit 7 (13,742) 14,763
RN Finance costs 8 (1,492) (6,566)
I BR BT 15 %1 Al (Loss)/Profit before
(518) %7 income tax (15,234) 8,197
Fr5FiF = Income tax expense 9 (2,047) (1,806)
REE (BER) ER (Loss)/Profit for the year (17,281) 6,391
DER Attributable to:
RARETIFEA Owners of the Company 10 (17,241) 6,431
DY IR RS Minority interests (40) (40)
(17,281) 6,391
AL 7S {1l
FR (BEB) &R (Loss)/Earnings per share 12 HK cents HK cents
- &K - Basic (2.133) 0.713
-8E - Diluted THERA N/A 0.711
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-Z—ZTHF=F=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-EF ZTTNhF
2010 2009
FExT T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
REE (BFE) =A (Loss)/Profit for the year (17,281) 6,391
Hih2mH W= Other comprehensive income
MEGINETSFTE £ Exchange difference arising from translation of

ZIERER overseas operations 58 1,270
HEKB QA Transfer to profit or loss on

& A disposal of subsidiaries - (3,646)
AFEFEMEEKE - Other comprehensive income for the year,

BRI net of tax 58 (2,376)
AEELXHRZETE Total comprehensive income for the year (17,223) 4,015
DEHR Attributable to:

RAFIEREEA Owners of the Company (17,183) 4,055
DHIRRE S Minority interests (40) (40)
(17,223) 4,015
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZT—ZFF=H=+—H As at 31 March 2010

—E-ZF —ETNEF
2010 2009
k23 FE&T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current assets
VI - B R Property, plant and equipment 14 54,094 36,585
TEfT + # 3 & FKIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 138 143
JE Y (R B8 SR8 Retention receivables 20 6,680 16,285
BHEFRITER Pledged bank deposit 21 - 5,000
HETBNFKIE Prepayments for investments 17 - 3,657
60,912 61,670
RBEE Current assets
BE Inventories 18 24,495 =
FEWEP A4 ITIRIIE  Amounts due from customers of
contract works 19 232,271 405,609
B 5 R E M EWEIE Trade and other receivables,

ENRIERES prepayments and deposits 20 124,159 53,755
Al Y @ £ 18 Tax recoverable 1,746 527
SEARITER Pledged bank deposits 21 35,320 27,297
RTEFEES Cash at banks and in hand 22 89,313 63,757

507,304 550,945
RBEE Current liabilities
ENEEAXITIEZRIE  Amounts due to customers of
contract works 19 3,560 2,541
B 5 I CH fth fE < 5IE Trade and other payables 23 86,975 63,873
Ep=i Borrowings 24 107,357 144,134
197,892 210,548
REBEEFRE Net current assets 309,412 340,397
WEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 370,324 402,067
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=F—ZFF=H=+—H As at 31 March 2010

—E-ZF —ETNE
2010 2009
k23 FE&T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
kREBERE Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 24 372 15,201
FEIEFIE B (E Deferred tax liabilities 25 5,684 3,684
6,056 18,885
EEFE Net assets 364,268 383,182
e EQUITY
i@ Share capital 26 41,294 40,049
fEfE Reserves 28 322,712 342,831
RATRERTFEA Equity attributable to owners
JE ik 2 of the Company 364,006 382,880
DEHRERE S Minority interests 262 302
48 R Total equity 364,268 383,182
2 E
Director Director
FE{ER ERIBE
YUEN Wai Keung SO Yiu Cheung
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B 7% AR R 5%
Statement of Financial Position

R=ZT—ZFF=H=+—H As at 31 March 2010

—E-EF —EENF
2010 2009
k23 FHET FH&TT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current assets
RIBRARZKE Investments in subsidiaries 16 139,228 136,162
REBEE Current assets
BT FRIE R E A FEUEIE  Prepayments and other receivables 573 608
A Y B 7 IR Tax recoverable 841 _
NS B Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 196,364 213,680
RITEFRER Cash at banks and in hand 22 1,443 568
199,221 214,856
nEEE Current liabilities
HibE IR EER  Other payables and accruals 3,061 872
THIB R Provision for tax - 692
FET B B A R FIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 6,758 6,661
9,819 8,225
REBEEFE Net current assets 189,402 206,631
EEFE Net assets 328,630 342,793
= EQUITY
f& 7 Share capital 26 41,294 40,049
(L] Reserves 28 287,336 302,744
g Total equity 328,630 342,793
2 o
Director Director
R{E BB

YUEN Wai Keung

SO Yiu Cheung
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—ZTHF=F=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

KAARERAARGRR
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FRERE ERRERE

BE  BEEE  AHEE Share Capitl  ERBE  REEN  RERS HERRRE 2 3
Share Share Merger option  redemption  Translation Retained ~ Proposed A Minority Total
capital ~ premium’ Teserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ profits’  dividend" Total interests equity

T T i \p \p T T T T T T
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D SO0 SO0 HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO

WZESN\ERA-R At 1 Apri 2008 46,539 295,39 13,800 502 139 2,89 106,609 1432 437,838 - 437,838
KEREH Proft for the year - - - - - - 6,431 - 6,431 ) 6,301
Af2ENG Qther comprehensive income:

BERNERAEE Exchange difference arising from
LEREE Hranslation of overseas operations - - - - - 1210 - - 1270 - 1210
AU ERBAR Transfer to proft or loss on disposal

BARS (H0) of subsidiaries (note 30) - - - - - (3646) - - (3646) - (3,646)
KER2ENRETE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 2.376) 6,431 - 4,055 ) 4015
WER-BHERAZER  Acquistion of interests n a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - k1Y 2
BARE (Hitr1) Dividend paid (note 11) - - - - - - - (7432) 7432) - 1432)
BRERRH 2BRE (Fi227)  Share optons ranted i previous

years (note 27) - - - 198 - - - - 198 - 198
KERREHZERE (F27)  Share optons granted in curent

year (note 27) - - - 2,929 - - - - 2,99 - 2,99
Rk BRE (Wit2r) Share options forfefed (nofe 27) - - - (34) - - 3 - - - -
Bkt (ks Repurchass of shares (e 26/2) (6,490) (48,218) - - 6,490 - (64%0) - (54,708 - (54,708)
BEEREALRS Transactions vith owners [6490)  (48218) - 2784 6,490 - 6,147) [432)  [9019) w (38,671)

RZFEASZAZt-B A1 March 2009

R-ZENERA-A and 1 Aprl 2009 40,049 27,178 13,805 7,809 6,629 517 106,893 - 362,680 302 383,182
KE5EE Loss for the year - - - - - - (17.241) - (17.241) () (17.281)
Af2ENG Qther comprehensive income:

BERNSRMELZERZE  Exchang diference arising from
translation of overseas operations - - - - - 5 - - 5 - 58

FERRENAEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 58 (17.241) - (17,183) () (17.223)
BERRARE (i) Inerm dividend deckred frofe 11 - - - - - - 0.773) - (0,775) - (0,775)
RERRL 2B (H27)  Snare optons granted n curent year

note 27) - - - 2,289 - - - - 2,289 - 2,289
Rz BRE (Wit2r) Shere optons forfeted (ote 27) - - - (£.952) - - 4950 - - - -
REBREMETCRR  Sharesissued upon exercise of

share options 1,45 6,564 - (2,014) - - - - 579 - 5,795
EERREALRS Transactions with owners 1245 6,364 - (4677) - - (4829) - (1,691) - (1,691)
W-E-F5=f=1-R At 31 March 2010 41,04 213,142 13,805 3132 6,629 575 84,829 - 364,006 22 364,268
* REERBEARE M FARR RN * The total of these balances represents reserves in the consolidated

1 o statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-—T—TF= =+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RETB2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
HBRFTEREAT (B548) S5 F (Loss)/Profit before income tax (15,234) 8,197
P Adjustments for:
T T E I EEE  Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 6 358
Y - B N Depreciation of property,

ZIE plant and equipment 8,958 9,864
FEWA Interest income (96) 871)
B Interest expenses 1,492 6,566
WETEMNFIBREREE  Provision for impairment of prepayments

for investments 3,657 3,184
H A 8 W SR IERU B Impairment of other receivable 806 -
B A SR AR Excess over the cost of business combination

Z &8 (Hfzt29) (note 29) - (945)
b H B8 Exchange loss 8 275
HEWE  WENEE  Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,

ZEE, (es) plant and equipment 957 (96)
DA#E 25 45 0 DA IR () Equity-settled share-based

Sz HE compensation 2,289 3,127
HENB A A2 W= Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

(Ktz#30) (note 30) - (3,416)

Rt EBESEBA Operating profit before working

<30yl capital changes 2,843 26,243
ERCED)l Increase in inventories (24,495) (356)
FEU FEREF &L Change in net amounts due from/to

TRFRIBEE) 5 customers of contract works 174,357 (12,809)
B 5 & H b EUGRIA - Increase in trade and other

ENRERZS (B receivables, prepayments and deposits

JE WL AR BB SR IR) #EN (including retention receivables) (61,605) (40,560)
B NEMEMBIEEI Increase in trade and other payables 23,102 11,696
EETSFES Cash generated from/(used in)

(BAR) 2HRe operations 114,202 (15,786)
RITERREMEE Interest paid on bank loans

Z BERFHE and other borrowings (1,397) (6,388)
BEMHE 2 S A Interest element of finance leases (95) (178)
2 HF & Interest received 96 871
=ENREIEEST! Income tax paid

BB NFH Hong Kong profits tax (1,249) (1,956)

R B A b A% 1E Mainland China tax (17) (29)
mESTEFTEL, (B)F) Net cash from/(used in)

2B & HEE operating activities 111,540 (23,466)
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GEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-—ZT-—FTF= F=+—H ILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FEx T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RETBHzEHERE Cash flows from investing activities
EEBRITEFE N Increase in pledged bank deposits (3,023) (3,361)
BEWME  BEKEE Payments to acquire property,
Fir s 538 plant and equipment (27,116) (8,874)
HEWE MERREE Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fr1S 518 plant and equipment 130 882
¥BAGIRERHFEE  Net cash outflow on business combination
(KtaE29) (note 29) - (668)
HEMRBARRE R Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RER (M1aE30) (note 30) - (5,601)
REZETENFH - 32 F58 Net cash used in investing activities (30,009) (17,622)
METEZ2EESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BT M TS 5IE Proceeds from issuance of shares 5,795 =
i 181 A% 1 BT 5 5018 Payments for repurchase of shares - (948)
MEER New borrowings raised 97,361 225,097
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (149,142) (279,917)
BMERE 2 BRI D Capital element of finance leases (1,996) (4,621)
EIIRE Dividend paid (9,775) (7,432)
BEZBTEFH o B % FEE Net cash used in financing activities (57,757) (67,821)
ReRHRSEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
#m, (L) B8 cash equivalents 23,774 (108,909)
HBRFEFEAzESE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
RREZLEEY financial year 63,757 172,884
MEH =58 Exchange differences 21 (218)
BBREERZES Cash and cash equivalents at end of
RREEEY financial year 87,552 63,757
HERBLZEBE Y224 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
ROTEFENRS Cash at banks and in hand 89,313 63,757
B RITTEX Less: Bank overdraft (1,761) =
BBRFERZES Cash and cash equivalents at end of
LESEEY financial year 87,552 63,757
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 May 2004 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its principal
place of business is Units 1809-1812, Telford House, 16 Wang
Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of maintenance and
construction works on civil engineering contracts in respect of
waterworks engineering, road works and drainage and slope
upgrading for the public sector in Hong Kong, as well as the
provision of water supply services in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the Directors, as at 31 March 2010, the
ultimate holding company of the Company was Robinhoods
Development Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. As at the date of this report, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Best State Holdings Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements on pages 39 to 143 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (including all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 16 July
2010. On the same date, the Board proposed that the name
of the Company to be changed from “Ming Hing Waterworks
Holdings Limited FAEKEIER B R A A7 to “Mongolia
Investment Group Limited X% &EEBHR A F])”. The
proposed change of the name of the Company is subject to
the passing of a special resolution by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting and the
approval of the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

2.1

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which
are effective during the year

During the year, the Group has adopted, for the first time,
the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations to HKFRSs which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s financial statements for annual
periods beginning on 1 April 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 8

Presentation of financial
statements

Borrowing costs

Cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or an associate

Share-based payment - vesting
conditions and cancellations

Improving disclosures about
financial instruments

Operating segments
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

2.1

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which
are effective during the year (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial
statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain
changes to the format and titles of the primary financial
statements and to the presentation of some items within
these statements. A third statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period is
required when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of
items in its financial statements or when it reclassifies
items in its financial statements. It also gives rise to
additional disclosures.

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s assets,
liabilities, income and expenses is unchanged. However,
some items that were recognised directly in equity are
now recognised in other comprehensive income, for
example exchange difference arising on the translation
of overseas operations. HKAS 1 affects the presentation
of owner changes in equity and introduces a “Statement
of comprehensive income”. Comparatives have been
restated to conform with the revised standard. The Group
has applied changes to its accounting policies on
presentation of financial statements and segment
reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to the
comparatives have not affected the consolidated or
parent company statement of financial position at 1st
April, 2008 and accordingly, the third statement of
financial position as at 1st April, 2008 is not presented.
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are effective during the year (Continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing costs

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. As the Group’s current policy of
accounting for borrowing costs aligns with the
requirements of the revised HKAS 23, the revised HKAS
23 did not have any financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment
in a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or an
associate

The amendment requires the investor to recognise
dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or an
associate in profit or loss irrespective the distributions
are out of the investee’s pre-acquisition or post-
acquisition reserves. Under the new accounting policy, if
the dividend distribution is excessive, the investment
would be tested for impairment according to the
Company’s accounting policy on impairment of non-
financial assets. The new accounting policy has been
applied prospectively as required by the amendments to
HKAS 27, and therefore no comparatives have been
restated. The Company did not receive any dividends
from its subsidiaries which are distributed out of pre-
acquisition reserves and accordingly, the adoption of this
amendment did not have any financial impact on the
Group.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based payment -
vesting conditions and cancellations

This standard has been amended to clarify the definition
of vesting conditions and to prescribe the accounting
treatment of an award that is effectively cancelled
because a non-vesting condition is not satisfied. The
adoption of this amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

2.1

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which
are effective during the year (Continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving disclosures
about financial instruments

The amendments require additional disclosures for
financial instruments which are measured at fair value in
the statement of financial position. These fair value
measurements are categorised into a three-level fair value
hierarchy, which reflects the extent of observable market
data used in making the measurements. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions in the
amendments and has not provided comparative
information in respect of the new requirements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

Under HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, operating segment is determined based on
internal management reporting information that is
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.
In the previous annual financial statements, segments
were identified by reference to the dominant source and
nature of the Group’s risks and returns. The adoption of
HKFRS 8 has not changed the identified and reportable
operating segments for the Group. The measurement of
the segment information presented under HKAS 14 is
the same as that under HKFRS 8. However, certain
comparatives have been restated to conform with the
new disclosure requirements under this new standard.

The adoption of other new and revised HKFRSs which
are effective during the current year does not have impact
on the financial statements.
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are issued but are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and revised HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group. The Directors anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new
and revised HKFRSs that are expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below.
Certain other new and revised HKFRSs have been issued
but are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial
statements (Revised 2008)

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and introduces changes
to the accounting requirements for the loss of control of
a subsidiary and for changes in the Group’s interest in
subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income must be
attributed to the non-controlling interests (previously
known as minority interests) even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Management anticipates that the standard would not
result in materials impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised 2008)

The standard is applicable for business combinations
occurring in reporting period beginning on or after 1 July
2009 and will be applied prospectively. The new standard
still requires the use of the purchase method (now
renamed the acquisition method) but introduces material
changes to the recognition and measurement of
consideration transferred and the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities, and the measurement of non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. The new standard is
expected to have a significant effect on business
combinations occurring in reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009.



—E—-ZF 53, Annual Report 2010

B 7 #R 3|/ MY &
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-—T—TF= =+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 March 2010

2. RMFFTIRBIEIT 2EEH 2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
R EZER @) (Continued)

2.2 BEMIBRENZHTRE
BE BB REEA 2 H

2.2 Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which

Ve =}
- NE=))

ERUBBELENBEIREKS
Bt (CREBNFEER) (B)

WAMEESTATIRER - AEER_E
—ZFE AT EHKEWeI
Delight Holdings Limited 2 2 &,
BT - ZW B R S ERALE
5] 2 BB G E R E 3N
T—EMBFEAR o ZEER
REEaT BB EERES
JARMEEZ @t ERgH
ERAEERGHEE ST BERM
BRIBZHEREFER - %EZER
FTEBRRE:

@ WA

RIBRAB B HERE LR
3 XA IEEE
TR NBRSIVERIB AR AN 2
—88 o A - RIBLIERT
ZEBMBRELELES
5% RSMAREINIER
FEEHWIBAE L 2 X SR
#97%11,000,000/ 7T, ©

(b) EKARKE

RIBRBEBYHREE
AISE35E - WA ATBEEE R
ARELEEASEFE - K
ARREARYWE B HER
XA - WAEBLER
REMHIAL HETELE
Rl EBAMHZRARKT
HEFE - AR REEL
FAREBRIAREREE
A A E - BIRAHIIF
AERE TR ARER
AB PR o R ER A
BE1F 38 B X RE A S At
B BEIREBEFAR
PERR AT ETE -

are issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised 2008)
(Continued)

As disclosed in note 37, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Well Delight Holdings Limited on
17 June 2010 and the acquisition will be accounted for
in the coming financial year using the revised HKFRS 3.
The accounting impact arising from the adoption of
revised HKFRS 3 in accounting for the acquisition would
be different from that resulted from applying the Group’s
existing relevant accounting policies. Such differences
mainly include:

(@) Acquisition cost

Under the existing HFKRS 3, costs directly
attributable to the business combination are
included as part of the cost of acquisition. However,
under the revised HKFRS 3, transaction costs
should be expensed. The estimated transactions
costs incurred for the acquisition is approximately
HK$11 million.

(b) Contingent consideration

Under the existing HKFRS 3, contingent consideration
should be recognised at the acquisition date of a
business combination if the contingent consideration
is probable and can be measured reliably. If the future
events do not occur or the estimate needs to be
revised, the cost of the business combination is to be
adjusted accordingly. Contingent consideration is not
included in the cost of the combination at the time of
initially accounting for the combination if it either is
not probable or cannot be measured reliably. If that
adjustment subsequently becomes probable and can
e measured reliably, the additional consideration shall
be treated as an adjustment to the cost of the
combination.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

2.2 Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which
are issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised 2008)
(Continued)

(b)

Contingent consideration (Continued)

Under the revised HKFRS 3, the consideration the
acquirer transfers in exchange for the acquiree
includes any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement and the
acquirer shall recognise the acquisition-date fair
value of contingent consideration as part of the
consideration transferred in exchange for the
acquiree. Changes in fair value of contingent
consideration resulted from additional information
obtained after the acquisition about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
are regarded as measurement period adjustments.
The acquirer recognises additional assets or
liabilities by means of adjusting the amount of
goodwill. In addition, measurement period shall not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.
However, changes resulting from events after the
acquisition date are not measurement period
adjustments and shall not be accounted for by
adjusting the goodwill on the acquisition date.
Instead, contingent consideration classified as
equity is not subsequently re-measured and
settlement is accounted for within equity, whereas
contingent consideration classified as an asset or
a liability that (i) is financial instrument and is within
the scope of HKAS 39 shall be measured at fair
value, with any resulting gain or loss recognised
either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive
income in accordance with that HKFRS, (ii) is not
within the scope of HKAS 39 shall be accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 37 or other HKFRSs
as appropriate.
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2.2 Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which

are issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised 2008)
(Continued)

(b) Contingent consideration (Continued)

According to the revised HKFRS 3, the Group is
required to recognise the fair value of the Contingent
Consideration (as defined in note 37) at the date of
the acquisition. The Contingent Consideration may
not have been recorded under the existing HKFRS
3 since it is not considered probable that the Fair
Value (as defined in note 37) will be amounted to
HK$1,550 million or above.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and addresses the
classification and measurement of financial assets. The
new standard reduces the number of measurement
categories of financial assets and all financial assets will
be measured at either amortised cost or fair value based
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those on certain
equity investments which will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The Directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the new standard on
the Group’s results and financial position in the first year
of application.

Annual improvements 2009

The HKICPA has issued “Improvements to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards 2009”. Most of the
amendments become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010. The Directors do
not expect those amendments to have a material effect
on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions have been used in preparing these financial
statements. Although these estimates and assumptions
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates and
assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4 “Critical Accounting Estimates
and Judgements”.

During the current year, the Directors have reviewed the
function of the Group’s expenses and have decided to
classify certain expenses as cost of revenue which were
previously allocated under administrative expenses. Such
costs mainly include certain depreciation and staff costs
as well as levy payments which are mainly incurred for
the maintenance and construction works. As a result of
this change in classification of expenses, administrative
expenses amounting to HK$19,491,000 have been
reclassified from administrative expenses to cost of
revenue in the comparatives of the consolidated income
statement of the current year to conform with the current
year’s presentation. The above reclassification has no net
impact to the result for the year ended 31 March 2009.
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(note 3.3) made up to 31 March each year. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Company obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. All material intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Business combinations (other than those under common
control) are accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of
a business combination to the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities including contingent
liabilities assumed at the date of the business
combination. The cost of business combination is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the business combination.

Intra-group transaction, balance and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Minority interest represents the portion of profit or loss
and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Group and are not
the Group’s financial liabilities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority
interests are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the Group’s results.
Where losses applicable to the minority exceeds the
minority interests in the subsidiary’s equity, the excess
and further losses applicable to the minority are allocated
against the minority interests to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the
losses are charged against the Group’s interests. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such profits are
allocated to the minority interests only after the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control,
directly or indirectly, the financial and operating policies
S0 as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Company controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss.
The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends, whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interests in the fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities including
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as an
asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
any impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually at the reporting date or more
frequently if events or change in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of goodwill may be impaired.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue and other income is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and when the income can be measured reliably on the
following bases:

()  When the outcome of civil engineering contracts
can be estimated reliably, revenue from
maintenance or construction works on civil
engineering contracts is recognised according to
the percentage of completion of individual contract
at the reporting date (note 3.10).

(i) Revenue arising from water supply is recognised

based on the volume of water supplied as recorded
by meters read during the year.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(i)  Water supply related installation income is
recognised when the relevant installation work is
performed.

(iv) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (nhote 3.7).
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other costs such as repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment less its residual value,
if applicable, over its estimated useful lives. Buildings and
water pipelines are depreciated using straight-line method
at the annual rates of 3.17% and 4.85% respectively.
Other items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated using reducing balance method at the
following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Leasehold improvements 30%
Motor vehicles 20%
Machinery and tools 30%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or
loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
assets’ carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount but only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised.

A reversal of such impairment is credited to profit or loss
in the period in which it arises unless that asset is carried
at revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for the revalued amount.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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POLICIES (continued)

3.8 HE ©®) 3.8 Leases (Continued)

REHE-FREBAA

HARENEEHERBEEERL
A AIREZSEHEE 2 5A
RAEHAAEREERSERN
B - MR EHMI AR RIRA R
MEEBEN & 2 M Bk
S o FREEF BRI % 12 Y 2t R FERR
RENEESFEZAKED -
FREEREELEZ STHER
Yz R HNBR o

BN AERRERA LR E
REREE T 2 AN - K
AR R At 5 MO (E B 1R 51 BR
(I5E3.7) - BHNHEMALER
FETE  RIFEEMERERER
B RREEEERMESE R Kt
B RIBRSN

BMERE -FREAA

HAKEAREHERSEERE
% AIREEEQAAEHKE
HeREUBREESE) FAY
X BELERERN MEBEAE
RINBRI B ERERARIIRRE
MEERE-

HIREREHERZRFACEE
ZEB TR EAE LA
BEEMERE - HEZR
EHERBARETNGMEER
BrzMEE -

Operating leases - as lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments represent up-front
payments to acquire the land use rights or leasehold land.
They are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (note 3.7). Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets.

Finance leases - as lessees

Where the Group acquires the right to use the assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present values
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligation under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding finance
lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance
charges.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Leases (Continued)
Finance leases - as lessees (Continued)

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Financial assets

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation
at each reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade date. Regular
way purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction cost. Derecognition of
financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred.
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POLICIES (continued)
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3.9 Financial assets (Continued)
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The Group’s financial assets mainly comprise loans and
receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost. Gain and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired as well as
through the amortisation process.

At each reporting date, loans and receivables are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable date that come to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the followings loss
events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtors;
- a breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtors will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable data
includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decrease and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is revised by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost had the
impairment not been recognised at the reversal date.
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When the outcome of civil engineering contracts can be
estimated reliably, revenue from maintenance or
construction works on civil engineering contracts and the
associated contract costs are recognised according to
the stage of completion of individual contract at the
reporting date. The stage of completion is determined
using percentage of completion method by reference to
the survey of work performed or contract costs incurred
to date, depending on nature of the contract.

When the outcome of civil engineering contracts cannot
be estimated reliably, no profit is recognised and revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that would probably be recoverable.

Provisions are made for any foreseeable losses when they
are identified and recognised immediately as an expense
in profit or loss. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are recognised as revenue when it is
probable that they will be approved by customers and
they can be measured reliably.

Amounts due from customers of contract works represent
contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less
progress billings and any foreseeable losses. Amounts
due to customers of contract works represent the excess
of progress billings over contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less any foreseeable losses. Costs
mainly comprise materials, direct labour and sub-
contractors’ fees. Costs incurred during the year in
connection with future activity of a contract are
recognised as amounts due from customers of contract
works provided it is probable that these costs will be
recovered. Amounts billed for works performed but not
yet paid by the customers are included in the statement
of financial position under “trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits”.
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Retentions, representing amounts of progress billings
which are payable to sub-contractors or receivables from
customers when conditions specified in the contracts
undertaken are satisfied, are included in the statement
of financial position under “trade and other payables” and
“trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits”
respectively.

3.11 Inventories

Inventories which represent construction materials are
stated at the lower of cost, computed using first-in-first-
out method, and net realisable value. Cost mainly includes
cost of purchase. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less any
applicable selling expenses.

3.12Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

In the separate financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date at exchange rates ruling
at that date are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not translated. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined.
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The functional currencies of certain entities of the Group
are currencies other than HK$. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities
of those entities at the reporting date are translated into
HK$ at exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date.
Income and expense items are translated into HK$ at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average exchange rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. The resulting exchange differences are
included in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in translation reserve in equity.
Such translation differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal in
the period in which the foreign entity is disposed of.

3.13Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits,
including existing temporary difference, will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of
cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.15 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised when they
accrue to employees. In particular, a provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Share-based employee compensation

Details about the accounting policy on share-based
compensation to employee are set out in note 3.16 below.

3.16 Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contributions that the eligible participants have made to
the Group. Eligible participants including employees
(including Directors), customers, suppliers, agents,
partners, consultants, advisers or shareholders of or
contractors to the Group or any affiliate, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based compensation,
whereby eligible participants render services as
consideration for equity instrument (i.e. equity-settled
transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date the
options are granted excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions. The cost of equity-settled
transactions with parties other than employees is
measured by reference to the fair value of the goods or
services provided.
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an expense in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
using straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is indication that the number
of share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. Any adjustment to the fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss in the year
of the review with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting that relate to market condition (which
is treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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The Group’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other
payables, borrowings and finance lease liabilities.
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently stated at
amortised costs. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction cost) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate.

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less
the capital element of lease repayments (note 3.8).

All interest related charges are recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(note 3.20).
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made. Where the effect of discounting is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation. All
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly with the control of the Group are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

3.19Financial guarantee issued

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39
are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
(or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 3.18 if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee and the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

3.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.
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Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within equity,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends are approved and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

3.22 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchases of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. On
repurchase of the Company’s own shares, the amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares repurchased is
transferred from retained profits to capital redemption
reserve. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

3.23 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediate, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating decisions, or has
joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(i)  the party is an associate of the Group or a jointly
venture in which the Group is a venturer;
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(iv)  the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or any
entity that is related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealing with the entity.

3.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
chief operating decision-maker i.e. the Executive
Directors for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

4.1 Civil engineering contracts

Revenue from maintenance and construction works on
civil engineering contracts is recognised according to the
percentage of completion of individual contract which
requires the estimation of contract costs and gross profit
margin of each contract. Contract costs and gross profit
margin of individual contract is determined based on
budget of the contract which was prepared by the
management of the Group. In order to ensure that the
total estimated contract costs are accurate and up-to-
date such that gross profit margin can be estimated
reliably, management reviews the costs incurred to date
and costs to completion frequently, in particular in the
case of costs over-runs and the variation orders from
customers, and revise the estimated contract costs where
necessary.

If the actual contract costs and the gross profit margin
differ from the management’s estimates, the contract
revenue and gross profit to be recognised in the next
financial year will be adjusted accordingly.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is determined by management
based on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in the financial position of the
customers. Management would re-assess the amount
of impairment for receivables, if any, at each reporting
date.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in
according with the accounting policy stated in note 3.6.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment reflect the management’s estimation of the
periods during which the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue from the Group’s principal activities,
which is also the Group’s turnover, and other income and gains

Mranw is as follows:
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W = Revenue
TARIEBEHZRE Contract revenue from maintenance
NEETREzae80=E and construction works on civil
engineering contracts 675,379 630,749
K AR 7% W 2 Revenue from water supply services 530 19,212
HKBRLEE Water supply related installation fee 50 10,909
675,959 660,870
H A A & Wz Other income and gains
IRITH B U A Bank interest income 96 871
B E (fiE(a) Compensation received (note (a)) - 1,077
BHEREHKAZ SR Excess over the cost of business
(K zE29) combination (note 29) - 945
LEWE  BERLKEZ Gain on disposal of property,
& plant and equipment - 96
HEWB A A 2 Y= Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(K1:£30) (note 30) - 3,416
B A Sundry income 3 907
99 7,312
U Total income 676,058 668,182
Bfat - Notes:
(a) E/\\\L*Eﬁﬁ(ﬁfg  REEBHREA (@  During last financial year, the Group received an amount of

HAE ([ B ) BT K E
1 077 QOB LIEAREHE—ZTZT
NFE=A=+—BItHBHFEEHEL
ZEXMEEZEBRFEE -

2008.
486,959,0007\%73&72% (722%

£ 1 320,252,000/ 78 48%) JWE
FERKBLIEABEF D 2 E—

)5

HK$1,077,000 from the government of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as compensation for the loss arising from
the snow storm occurred in the financial year ended 31 March

During the current financial year, HK$486,959,000 or 72% (2009:
HK$320,252,000 or 48%) of the Group’s revenue depended on
a single customer in the waterworks engineering contracting
business segment.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group are reported in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s Executive Directors for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. The Group has identified the following reportable
segments for its operating segments:

(i)  Waterworks engineering contracting business segment
— This segment involves the provision of maintenance
and construction works on civil engineering contracts in
respect of waterworks engineering, road works and
drainage and slope upgrading for the public sector in
Hong Kong; and

(i) Water supply business segment — This segment involves
the provision of water supply services and water supply
related installation services in Mainland China.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments. Reportable
segment profit/loss excludes corporate income and expenses
from the Group’s profit/loss before income tax. Corporate
income and expenses are income and expenses incurred by
corporate headquarters which are not allocated to the operating
segments. Each of the operating segments is managed
separately as the resources requirement of each of them is
different.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
corporate assets, including bank balances and cash and other
assets which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of operating segments, as well as those assets which
are managed on a group basis such as tax assets.

Segment liabilities include trade and other payables, accrued
liabilities and other liabilities directly attributable to the business
activities of operating segments and exclude corporate liabilities
and other liabilities such as tax liabilities and bank borrowings
that are managed on a group basis.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment results, segment assets and segment

liabilities

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
including the reconciliations to revenue, profit/loss for the year,
total assets and total liabilities and other segment information

are as follows:

KEIRARRER
Waterworks HKER
engineering Water supply G&
contracting business business Consolidated

CE-EF | CEENE ) ZE-BE | CEENE | ZE-BF | CIONE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
TEn T Tén THL T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R Lty Reportable segment revenue* 675,379 630,749 580 30,121 675,959 660,870
AR (FE) /%A Reportable segment (loss)/profit (2,642) 18,772 (1,039) 5,841 (3,674) 24,613
PERARRS Corporate income and expenses (10,068) (9,850)
AR Finance costs (1,492) (6,566)
NRHEDE (B8) /&5 (Loss)/Proft before income tax (15,234) 8197
fEHRR Income tax expense (2,047) (1,806)
KEE (BB) /%7 (Loss)/Profit for the year (17,281) 6,391

At

Total
2010 2009
ZE-EF | CETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén
ARRAHEE Reportable segment assets 513,455 557,438 17,121 17519 530,576 574,957
TREHE Tax recoverable 1,746 527
BERRTER Pledged bank deposits 35,320 3,297
b5EE Corporate assefs 574 4,834
BEAR Total assets 568,216 612,615
AERANEE Reportable segment liabilities 88,226 68,081 2% 2% 86,452 68,105
RTERRER Bank loans and overdrat 106,751 166,771
-t Deferred tax iabilties 5,684 3684
31 Corporate liabilties 3,061 873
BEaE Total liabilities 203,948 209,433
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6. oHER @ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
DEMEE  PBEERSHEE Segment results, segment assets and segment
(&) liabilities (Continued)
KEIRAGEH
Waterworks kR
engineering Water supply &&
contracting business business Consolidated
ZE-%F 0 CIENE | CE3-BE 0 ZETNF | ZEB-3F | CTINE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

TR TR AR TR TER TR
HKS000 ©  HKSO000 © HKS000 | HKSO00 | HK$'000 | HKSO00

AR Other information
HSKA Interest income 67 808 2 63 % 871
ARG ERE Impairment of other receivable - - 806 - 806 =
RERTERIER Addtions to specified non-current assets * 21,52 8,314 - 15,634 27,52 18948
hEREH Depreciation and amortisation 8,553 6,776 41 3,446 8,964 10222
RUZBAMHA 2% Excess over the cost of business combination - - - 945 - 945
WEREETINRATN HE  Eouity-settled share-based compensation 2,289 8,127 - - 2,289 3127
. EIERBINBEFP ZHE - BHE= * This represents sales from external customers and there were
TZER_ZFENF=A=1+—AH no inter-segment sales between different business segments
IEFE - TREBHH2HIESH for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.
FRHE °
u HEERBEEZIERR TX ° & Specified non-current assets are defined below.
ithEE R Geographical information
REE 2 ZBURES (FiEt) KH The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of
Bl Ay o NEE R @ 25 2 WS Ty domicile) and Mainland China. The Group’s revenue by
BIBEEPEMERE - AEEIRME geographical location is determined based on locations of
252 E - BEREE - ENLTH customers. The Group’s property, plant and equipment, prepaid
ME B XA AN A (D [ EIF land lease payments and prepayments for investments (i.e.
RBEE]) NRBEEEZ B BE “specified non-current assets”) by geographical locations are
7E °© determined based on physical location of the assets.
% hER G
Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
“E-3F | ZETAE | CE-3F | ZEINF | CE-3F | ZEENE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
TiEn TAT TR Thn TR TEL
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
b Revenue 675,379 630,749 580 30,121 675,959 660,870
REFRBEE Specified non-current assets 44,902 21,019 9,330 13,306 54,232 40,385
RAalpRHSEESEMKILEE The Company is an investment holding company incorporated
ZlRpaE RASHESINEETE in the Cayman Islands where the Group does not have activities.
e BRARANRBAELEETEE Since the major operations of the Group is conducted in Hong
% - B SLRIE R BB Bk £ 58 Kong, Hong Kong is considered as the Group’s place of
FETZHBEMS  BBHGEAELRE domicile for the disclosure purpose of HKFRS 8.
B 2 FriEt o
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7. OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT

—E-ZF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
i (F1E) R A TR Operating (loss)/profit is arrived at
(FrA) THIZIEEZBE - after charging/(crediting):
TE AT + Hb 7H & KT o Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments 6 358
Y BEREKEZINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
-BREE - owned assets 8,414 8,123
-HEEE — leased assets 544 1,741
8,958 9,864
BEIXNA(BIEESEH) Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)
-Fe  RUREDET — salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 87,265 83,600
— RIREFET B 5K — retirement benefits scheme contributions
(REMHKETED (defined contribution plan) 2,945 1,652
- AR A E AR (0 S A+ — equity-settled share-based
Zf1E (Hat27) compensation (note 27) 2,030 886
92,240 86,138
KEHEEH Operating lease charges
- T REF — land and buildings 1,411 1,382
- BB M as - plant and machinery 5,057 12,790
6,468 14,172
ZE RN & Auditors’ remuneration 773 924
HEWE - WE Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
B2 ERE (W) plant and equipment 957 (96)
A TR FRI8 2 R BB Provision for impairment of prepayments
(KHtaz17) for investments (note 17) 3,657 3,184
H At JE FRIB 2 R E Impairment of other receivable 806 =
b X B85 58 Net foreign exchange loss 2 147
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8. mEA 8. FINANCE COSTS
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
NTEBEZNEER : Interest charges on:
ERAFREEEERE Bank loans and overdraft wholly
ZIRITERREL repayable within five years 1,397 5,949
BERENR A EZHD Interest element of finance
lease payments 95 178
ERAFHNEERECEMEER Other borrowings repayable
within five years - 439
1,492 6,566
9. FIBHEX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—g-%5 | —TThf
2010 2009
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R RiB S 15 Income tax expense comprises:
N4 [ B B A TE Current tax for the year
- BABNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 47 1,791
- BEMEH — Enterprise income tax - 897
47 2,688
AT E 2 BERE Over provision in prior years
- BENEH — Hong Kong profits tax - (1,009)
EERIE (B 7225) Deferred tax (note 25)
-METRZZE — Attributable to decrease in tax rate - (173)
- HAftb — Others 2,000 300
2,000 127
FrB i F & Income tax expense 2,047 1,806
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) arising from the PRC is calculated according
to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The applicable
tax rate for the EIT is 25% (2009: 25%).

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/
profit before income tax at applicable tax rates as follows:

mT

—E-EF —ZETNF
2010 2009
FERT FH&T
HK$°000 HK$’000
HBRFTSFLAT (B518) % F]  (Loss)/Profit before income tax (15,234) 8,197
ZEAR BRI EERRT Notional tax on profit calculated at
ZHEGFE 2 mMBER the rates applicable to profits in
the jurisdiction concerned (2,978) 894
F AT E TR AR Effect on opening deferred tax balance
ERIBAE R 2 OB resulting from a decrease in tax
rate during the year - (173)
BARBIMA 2 TGz 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (1) (1,545)
DA RS 2 TR & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,069 3,172
mARMER ZRIEEE 2 Tax effect on tax losses
MGz B not recognised 1,980 -
PATEF 8 2 iR Over provision in prior years - (1,009)
HAh Others (23) 467
Fris A=< Income tax expense 2,047 1,806
KARERFEREARERML (B 10. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
18) &R OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
RARAEEHEARGEESEERER Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company

17,241,000/ L (ZZEZF LF -
H 19,198,000/ 7T
Y 119,702,000

a43L00@%7E>
ZEE(CEThFE

ot ) of HK$17,241,000 (2009: profit of HK$6,431,000), a loss of

BT ERARRZ M HHmR AR °

HK$9,198,000 (2009: profit of HK$9,702,000) has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.
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11.

12.

R E 11. DIVIDEND
—E-BF —ETNF
2010 2009
FHET TAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
2R AR B FMK1.278100  Interim dividend declared of HK1.2 cents
ZETNF ) (2009: nil) per share 9,775 =

E=ZTERNBE_Z-TF=A
=t—HLEFEZREKRES -

REBEE_ZEZAF=A=+—HIH
HEEERNRERERADIKNEE =
TENF=A=1+—HLETHRFERE
15 P% 8 &7,432,0007 7T °

B (BE) BF

BRERX (BB BN ERKEE
KRR ERFBEAEREMGEIS
17,241,000 L (ZZZENF ¢ & A
6,431,000/ 7T) R A E 1T E AR
Y hn#E S 15 £1808,397,0000% (=T F
FLE 1 901,701,0008%) 5+ & -

AEAFREZERETERE - XE
RAR M AT 2 BT E R 5E
TR T RAESREEREARES
TR HNAMZEBERESERER
B
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12.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Dividend attributable to the financial year ended 31 March 2008
but were paid and recognised as distributions during the
financial year ended 31 March 2009 amounted to
HK$7,432,000.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year of
HK$17,241,000 (2009: profit of HK$6,431,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year of 808,397,000 (2009: 901,701,000).

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding share options as
disclosed in note 27 since they are anti-dilutive i.e. the
conversion of such would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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12. B (B8) &BF @ 12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

U RFEsGREBERF THER The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the last financial
RRARERRTA ARERT6,431,000 year is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
BT E—BEFEE T T AR Company of HK$6,431,000 and the weighted average number
B (B BERARRIAE MARTT of ordinary shares in issue during the last financial year, adjusted
2 BIRERETE ST BB MIZE for the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
ﬁ{ﬁ?‘ﬁzﬁ‘ AR ANHE 39 HE H 7 to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
B)EE FEAFEEAT ¢ exercise of all outstanding share options of the Company into

ordinary shares, which is calculated as follows:

—g-%5 | —TThf
2010 2009
REt&E iﬂxﬁﬁﬂﬂ Weighted average number of ordinary
ZzliiEE?é‘ﬁ & 3 A% shares in issue during the year used
DN 19 2 in the calculation of basic earnings
per share TEMA N/A 901,701,000
i ARTTE 2 BB P Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
EHEERRZE shares in respect of the outstanding
share options TE A N/A 3,029,000
RARETE SRS AT Weighted average number of ordinary
2 AR I RE g & shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share TER N/A 904,730,000
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13. EEREREEBAEME 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) EE=E< (a) Directors’ emoluments

kA3 RUER  AEEEE
RENEN AEMR  YURGRA

Salaries, Retirement ZHfE
allowances benefits  Equity-settled
#2  and benefits scheme  share-based ag
Fees inkind  contributions compensation Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TERL
Z¥-%fF 2010
HiTE=S Executive Directors
R L& Mr. Yuen Chow Ming - 1,154 - 144 1,208
REREE Mr. Yuen Wai Keung - 1,634 12 145 1,791
i Mr. So Yiu Cheung - 1,154 12 144 1,310
REX L& Mr. Cheung Chi Man,
Dennis - 1,080 12 - 1,092
MEEEE () Mr. Ho Hin Hung,
Henry (note (i)) - 82 - - 82
BUFHTES Independent Non-
Executive Directors
DINEHEK Professor Leung Yee Tak 120 - - 86 206
BRAKE Mr. Liao Cheung Tin, Stephen 120 - - 86 206
TUREE Mr. Wong Lap Shek, Eddie 90 - - 86 176
Blaz%aE (Wam) Mr. Sun Bo Quan (note (v]) - - - = -
330 5,104 36 691 6,161
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13. EERESHREBEAEME @ 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EEM= (& (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
e 2 RINER WEREE
RENEH SEdE  BURGZHE
Salaries, Retirement LB
allowances benefits  Equity-settled
#€  and benefits scheme  share-based ek
Fees in kind contributions  compensation Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR AR THET THT
ZBRNE 2009
BTES Executive Directors
R L& Mr. Yuen Chow Ming - 1,034 - - 1,034
REBRLE Mr. Yuen Wai Keung - 1,034 12 - 1,046
BIRELAE Mr. So Yiu Cheung - 1,034 12 - 1,046
R& XL (BaE) Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis
(note (i) - 525 6 366 897
BUEHTES Independent Non- Executive
Directors
DU EHE Professor Leung Yee Tak 120 - - - 120
BRRLE (W) Mr. Liao Cheung Tin,
Stephen (note (i) 13 - - - 13
TUARE () Mr. Wong Lap Shek, Eddie
(note (iv)) €8 - - - 38
REEE (W) Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis
(note (ii)) 48 - - - 48
BERLT (H7#Y) Ms. Chung Lai Kwok,
Elaine (note (v)) 90 - - = 90
B2 % (Fi) Mr. Sun Bo Quan (note (vi) 100 - - - 100
BRELE (Kt i) Mr. Cheng Ka Ming,
Martin (note (vif)) 47 - - - 47
451 3,627 30 366 4,474
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13. EENEREEAESHME » 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EE=BE (® (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
BtaE - Notes:
(i) R-TE—ZSF-A+HAEZ () appointed on 15 March 2010
ffE
iy M-_ZEZNF+AT+HEHE (i)  re-designated from an Independent Non-executive
VBT ESHERRNITES Director to be an Executive Director on 15 October 2008
(i RZZEENF-_A-THEZ (i)  appointed on 20 February 2009
{E
vy RZEZEN\F+A+RAEZE (iv)  appointed on 15 October 2008
£
vy RZZETENF—A—BEF (v)  resigned on 1 January 2009
(vip R-ZZTZTNFWHA—HETE (vi)  resigned on 1 April 2009
(vi) RZZEZENFT+A—HEEZFE (vi) appointed on 1 October 2008 and resigned on 20
FR—ZETNF_A=-+HE February 2009
fE
BEEENERAATRELE No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
E-ZEER_FTNF=A=T in respect of the years ended 31 March 2010 and 20009.

—RLEFEZERNHE
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13. EERESHREBEAEME @ 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENTS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) EEBREHFAL (b) Five highest paid individuals

AEEREZEFATEELS The five highest paid individuals in the Group included

(ZZETNF MR)E= - HM
SEREXHE -ENTHRT—
2(CETNF  —R)BRSFHIE

four (2009: four) Directors whose emoluments have been
disclosed above. The emoluments paid to the remaining
one (2009: one) highest paid, non-director individual is

EEATZMESHT ¢ as follows:
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
e EBNEWEF  Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 1,203 780
RAORAE T FT 2 R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 12 12
VARE #5 45 E 0 LARR 19 Equity-settled share-based
Stz HE compensation 86 30
1,301 822

E—%(CERAF R B
RHFEEALZMEBENT
T3IRE :

The aggregate emoluments of the above one (2009: one)
highest paid, non-director individual fell within the
following bands:

N
Number of individuals
—2-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
12 1,000,0007% 7T HK$1 - HK$1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001% 1,500,000/t HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1 -
1 1

REBE_Z—ZFER_ZFENF
ZA=t—HLFER ~&E
WERAESHEANRABTSITA
T RERME - (ERBEERS
IMAREE S EFMALREE R
2 REN A RBER o

During the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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14. 1% - BERRZE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Bl HE
RERRE  NEEE
Furniture, ~ Leasehold RE HBERIZ KER  ERIE
BT fixturesand  improve- Motor ~ Machinery Water Construction i
r5EE The Group Buildings  equipment ments vehicles  andtools  pipelines in progress Total
TAL TEL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEZ\EMA-A At 1 April 2008
KA Cost 46,726 15,195 4,856 24,283 19,304 20,313 1,328 132,005
2iHE Accumulated depreciation (385) (2,314) (1,847) (9051) (11,002 (280) - (24,879)
REFH Net book amount 46,341 12,881 3,009 15,232 8,302 20,033 1,328 107,126
REFE Net book amount
RZEF\EMA-A At 1 April 2008 46,341 12,881 3,009 15,232 8,302 20,033 1,328 107,126
EHHAZ Tranglation adjustment 954 166 - 4 - 361 68 1,553
ME Additions - 1,672 331 2,147 316 22 4,554 9,042
BBERAGAE (B3229)  Additions through business
combination (note 29) 1,371 597 - - - 6,822 968 9,758
E5 Transfer - - - - - 961 (961) -
HERB AR (H3#30) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 30) (46,159) (8,399) - (141) - (19,594) (5,957) (80,244)
i Disposals - (105) (368) en) 42) - - (786)
il Depreciation (1,192) (1,647) (773) (2,931) (2,234) (1,087) - (9,864)
RZZENE=R=1—H At 31 March 2009 1,315 5,171 2,199 14,040 6,342 7,518 - 36,585
RZEENE=A=1-H At 31 March 2009
A Cost 1,360 8,139 4,369 25,486 19,569 7,754 - 66,677
25r1TE Accumulated depreciation (45) (2,968) (2,170) (11,446) (13,227) (236) - (30,092)
REFE Net book amount 1,315 5171 2,199 14,040 6,342 7,518 - 36,585
REFH Net book amount
RZEENENA-A At 1 April 2009 1,315 5171 2,199 14,040 6,342 7,518 - 36,585
EXAE Translation adjustment 4 2 - - - 2 - 2
RE Additions - 1,777 1,106 20,470 4,173 - - 27,526
L Disposals - (417) - (655) (15) - - (1,087)
Vil Depreciation (51) (1,010) (759) (4,534) (2,271) (333) - (8,958)
WZB-BF=f=1-H At 31 March 2010 1,268 5,523 2,546 29,321 8,229 7,207 - 54,094
RZZ-%5=f=1-H At 31 March 2010
A Cost 1,576 9,107 5,475 44,214 23,688 7,779 - 91,839
25r1TE Accumulated depreciation (308) (3,584) (2,929) (14,893) (15,459) (572) - (87,745)
RERE Net book amount 1,268 5,523 2,546 29,321 8,229 7,207 - 54,094
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14. 1% - BERSE & 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
RAFE - AEIEHE410,000% T During the year, additions to motor vehicles amounting to
(ZEZT A 168,000/ 7T) IRt &% HK$428,000 (2009: HK$168,000) were financed by finance
HTERE F428,0008 T (ZEF N, leases amounting to HK$410,000 (2009: HK$168,000).

£ 168,000/ 7C) °

RZE—ZF=A=+—H " LU@mE& As at 31 March 2010, the net book amount of assets held
MEFXFEZEENREFED T under finance leases included in the net book amount of motor
AABER#:ERT AKRMA F5E vehicles and machinery and tools amounted to HK$1,565,000
#1,565,000 T (ZZEZENF : (2009: HK$7,329,000).

7,329,000/ 7T) °©

PIZERBRRFEDTAT The analysis of the net carrying amount of the property is as
follows:

—E-ZF —ZTTNF

2010 2009

FEx FETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

EREANAFRBHEERE In Mainland China, held under

medium-term leases 1,408 1,460
T3 & BTG ERS Representing:
EF Building 1,268 1l.&1l%
TEfT + Ho7H & 5RIE Prepaid land lease payments
(Kiat15) (note 15) 140 145
1,408 1,460
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15. FE{F L bEEFKE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
rEH
The Group
—E-EF —ZTThF
2010 2009
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RZ=ZFTN/ ZTENF Net carrying amount at 1 April 2009/2008 145 22,541
WA —H/EREFE
bE 0 & Translation adjustment 1 470
BREBEUAE (A77#729)  Addition through business combination
(note 29) - 148
LEMB AR (f730) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) - (22,656)
HIBR#E 55 Amortisation charged (6) (358)
RZT—F /ZTTNF Net carrying amount at
=A=1+—BrREREFE 31 March 2010/2009 140 145
DT - Analysed into:

sFASEREBEEMNIERBEBD  Non-current portion included in

non-current assets 138 143
STARBEENTE I KD Current portion included in current
(B7#£20) assets (note 20) 2 2
140 145
16. B A 16. SUBSIDIARIES
PN
The Company
—g-%E | -—TEAF
2010 2009
FTHExT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
REB AR Z’E Investments in subsidiaries
JE LR - FRECR Unlisted shares, at cost 139,228 136,162
A NG E S Amounts due from subsidiaries 196,364 213,680
AR ENGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 6,758 6,661
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16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

JE s, e AT B /B8 X R FRIR Ty MR AR

S ERARBRAEER o

K=F—FF=A=T—A2KHEA

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 are as

Gl follows:
EETR Pt FE A5 IR
MY BRRA Attributable FEEHRLEHEY
#1 Place of incorporation/ Issued and equity  Principal activities and
Name registration paid up capital interests held  place of operation
ERRERER
Interests held directly
HEERAERAA RERAHE 1% (ERk) 100% EBRBREREER
Rich Path Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding in
(ordinary share) Hong Kong

BEEEER
Interests held indirectly
REKBREIRERAE &R 68,800,000/ T (£ &R 100% HEEBREFIAIRAREH
Ming Hing Waterworks Hong Kong HK$68,800,000 Civil engineering contracting

Engineering Company (ordinary shares) business in Hong Kong

Limited
RELATIRBERATF BE 5,015,000 (L @MK) 100% HEEBREIAIRAREH
Ming Hing Civil Contractors Hong Kong HK$5,015,000 Civil engineering contracting

Limited

(ordinary shares)

business in Hong Kong

97



B EUKISIERBR AT Ming Hing Wate

B %5 SRR MY aE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z—ZTHF=F=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

16. [fiEB A T (&

16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EBTR Fits FE A R 8
AR G2 HRBRAE Attributable EEERRLEHH
#1 Place of incorporation/ Issued and equity  Principal activities and
Name registration paid up capital interests held  place of operation
BEsEER (B)
Interests held indirectly
(Continued)
AR AERRE BE 2,100 T (EBMR) 100% REBTAIEREEHR
Dominic Science & Hong Kong HK$2,100 TR IR RS
Technology Limited (ordinary shares) Provision of technical support
services on civil engineering
contracting business in
Hong Kong
DST Engineering Supplies B 10087 (LBR) 100% EEBRSIAIR
Limited Hong Kong HK$100 (ordinary shares) NMHEE
Trading of civil engineering
materials in Hong Kong
TREEEEERAR BE 1008 7C (EBAR) 100% EEEXE
DST Pipe Rehab Limited Hong Kong HK$100 (ordinary shares) Inactive
REK E BE a¥ il 9% EEAUFLIAIRABER
Ming Hing - INFO JV Hong Kong N/A Civil engineering contracting

93

business in Hong Kong



16. MIB A B (&

—

—E—-ZF 53, Annual Report 2010

B35 ¥R M AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-—T—TF= =+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 March 2010

16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR Fir s P4t Bt 4
AR 2 HRBRAE Attributable ETEERRLEHE
£ Place of incorporation/ Issued and equity  Principal activities and
Name registration paid up capital interests held  place of operation
BEREES (B)
Interests held indirectly
(Continued)
REKT (BR) BERAF RBRAHS 100% 7T (L BR) 100% EEBREREER
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands US$100 (ordinary shares) Investment holding in
(Qingyuan) Limited Hong Kong
REREKBEEIRERAR REBRLHS 100% 7T (L BR) 100% EEBREREER
Ming Hing Water Treatment British Virgin Islands US$100 (ordinary shares) Investment holding in
Engineering (PRC) Limited Hong Kong
BEKE(EM) ERAA EERAES 100% 7 (BAK) 100% EEL%
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands US$100 (ordinary shares) Inactive
(Leizhou) Limited
REKT (BE)BERAT ERRUES 100% 7T (EBAR) 100% EEE%
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands US$100 (ordinary shares) Inactive
(Nanning) Limited
REUKH (ET) ERA ] ERRUES 100% 7T (EBAR) 100% EEE%
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands US$100 (ordinary shares) Inactive
(Guiping) Limited
Brave Lion Investments RBRAES 100E 7T (L BAR) 100%  EEBRFRERR
Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 (ordinary shares) Investment holding in
Hong Kong
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16. [fiEB A T (&

16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTR P R
ALY/ TR 2 it B HBRRA Attributable FEERRLEHY
#1 Place of incorporation/ Issued and equity  Principal activities and
Name registration paid up capital interests held  place of operation
BEREES (&)
Interests held indirectly
(Continued)
BEMNEARAF e 1,367,670% T 100%  ERENMESREER
BRAR (M) PRC US$1,367,670 Investment holding in
(note (a)) Mainland China
RS R R & B Aok HE AR #9,600,0007T Fiztp)  HokEwH
BRAH PRC RMB9,600,000 note (h) ~ Water supply business
EMmRERRRREES HE AR #1,000,0007 100% ERERBEERERE kB
BRAR PRC RMB1,000,000 RENRERGERENEER
(KizHa) Trading of equipments of
(note (a)) environmental protection,
water treatment and
construction and accessories
in Mainland China
RESRK(BE)BERATF HE 1,282,343% T 100%  EEFHEET
(Hfit(a) PRC US$1,282,343 In the process of de-registration
(note (a))
Htat - Notes:
() ZERARREBEFBIEAEZEMAINEDR (@)  These companies are registered as wholly foreign owned
= enterprises under the PRC Law.
b) AEERFAFZRQRFEMEZ98.96% (o)  The Group has 98.96% interest in the registered capital of the
s - B #Z A R]185%:)m Sk & entity and is entitled to share 85% of the profit or loss of the
8o entity.
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17. REFE N RE 17. PREPAYMENTS FOR INVESTMENTS

REE
The Group

—E-ZF —EENF

2010 2009

FE T TAT

HK$°000 HK$’000

AR ESI N2 &S Deposits paid for potential investments 6,841 6,841
R ORE R Less: Provision for impairment (6,841) (3,184)
- 3,657

S

—E-EF=A=1T—HHER

BIETHEE

The balance as at 31 March 2010 comprised the followings:

@ AEERBEE_ZZTNF=A= (a)  The amount of RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
+— B LB BF E 5h P] RERK S — HK$2,157,000) represents the deposit paid by the Group
& & A a < A K#2,000,000 during the financial year ended 31 March 2008 for the
7T (FE 7R 492,157,000 7T) HY1% potential formation of an equity joint venture which will be
T o ZAEEARIKEEEFRE principally engaged in provision of water supply services in
RE BT REHEKERER - ER Leizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. In light of the
Al eI E R e Filtiz & 2 T increasing uncertainty as to the potential investment and
TEMETEIG I - EEERAMK the recoverability of the aforesaid deposit, the Directors have
FERIZSIER 2 EHEE - made full provision for the deposit in the current financial
year.
b) AEERBEEZE_ZTNF=A= (b)  The amount of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

+— BB FEERATERER
—BHRECEIFARYE
3,000,000 (1855 74 493,184,000
B MRS - R ESEEEF
BlEFE R KR - ERT
BB BRI S R I El E iz & 2 &
MG - EEE R E—
FHREERIRSEL 2 8UEE -

HK$3,184,000) represents the deposit paid by the Group
during the financial year ended 31 March 2008 in relation to
the potential investment in a PRC entity which will be
principally engaged in the provision of water supply services
in Guangxi Province, the PRC. In light of the increasing
uncertainty as to the completion of the acquisition and the
recoverability of the aforesaid deposit, the Directors have
made full provision for the deposit in last financial year.
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17. REFANRE @) 17. PREPAYMENTS FOR INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

() AEEREBE-ZZTZN\F=H= (¢)  The amount of HK$1,500,000 represents deposit paid
T BRI BREERAERIES by the Group during the financial year ended 31 March
FrRBMEZRAEZ SN 2008 in relation to the potential acquisition of equity
1,500,000/ TH R E - ZE 0 interests in certain PRC entities. These entities are
X¥FTEAEPBREREBTEMREMG principally engaged in the provision of water supply
FOKARTS o BER TERE U services in Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC.
I\ _F ik e 2 T HEE 14 T B g In light of the increasing uncertainty as to the completion
mn- EFECREAMBFERES of the acquisition and the recoverability of the aforesaid
TE 28R - deposit, the Directors have made full provision for the

deposit in the current financial year.

18. & 18. INVENTORIES
The Group
—F-%F —“EThF
2010 2009
FER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R R A E n — IR AR Raw materials and supplies — at cost 24,495 ~
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19. T RAIRBEY 19. CIVIL ENGINEERING CONTRACTS
AEE
The Group
—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
FExT T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
IS FTEE 2 KA Costs incurred to date plus recognised
e &R & profits 2,600,011 1,958,371
W 25 2 HEE IR Less: Progress billings to date (2,371,300) (1,539,214)
B A TEREE Less: Foreseeable losses - (16,089)
228,711 403,068
FEREFP & A TIERKIE Amounts due from customers of
contract works 232,271 405,609
ERNREFEAHIERE Amounts due to customers of
contract works (3,560) (2,541)
228,711 403,068
AETEIARIRENZAEREBEEER The proceeds on certain civil engineering contracts have been
TIRTT - E— D EFBHRMEE24(a) © pledged to banks as further detailed in note 24(a).
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20. EZ R HMEWNKIE - S  20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

FENRERE PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
AEE
The Group
—E-ZF —EFNEF
2010 2009
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 rWERIE (fit ) Trade receivables (note (a)) 53,228 27,068
FEWAR BB SR8 (K7 3% (b)) Retention receivables (note (b)) 28,281 18,487
JE L ERRIAE (A7aF15)  Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) 2 2
ENRIEREZS Prepayments and deposits 14,224 6,319
H b e W TR 3B (B 2E(c)) Other receivables (note (c)) 35,104 18,164
130,839 70,040
B IIAFERBEEERT Z Less: Retention receivables included
JE IR BB 3R IB under non-current assets (6,680) (16,285)
124,159 SENISS
Hiat - Notes:
(a) REERARENZLZHHNBEZIE (@)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables (based on invoice date)
WHIB 2 BRI DITAAT - as at the end of each reporting period is as follows:
REME
The Group
—z-2% B S
2010 2009
FAR FHR
HK$’000 HK$’000
=@AA Within 3 months 53,225 27,065
mE <8 A 4 to 6 months - 2
+Z @A 7 to 9 months 1 1
+EZ+=@A 10 to 12 months - =
—F Pk Over 1 year 2 -
53,228 27,068
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Credit period granted to customers of contract works is normally
30 to 60 days. Application for progress payments of contract
works is made on a regular basis. Credit period granted to
customers of water supply business is normally 30 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

BRTURERE 5 EUGIE 2 BRER D 1T individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as at the

NS end of each reporting period is as follows:

AEHE
The Group
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
B f= 8 HA SR B Neither past due nor impaired 53,225 27,065
180 BB 30 #R 45 B IRUE Past due but not considered impaired

=EAA Within 3 months - 1
MZESEA 4 to 6 months - 1
tE=NM@A 7 to 9 months 1 1
TE+Z 10 to 12 months - =
—FE M E Over 1 year 2 =
53,228 27,068
REERARNE ZEBKIEEZ R Trade receivables as at the end of each reporting period mainly

BRETARTRERANNRBEREET
2R - HERP EE ARSI,
BERERDLE ZERFHEASE
RGWAEBRLY - WEERARL
o At - ERERRBAREE
T—TF=A=+—HHZEZREKK
EE R ERE - NEBWERZSE
HERREEERR -

derived from provision of maintenance and construction works
on civil engineering contracts. The related customers are mainly
government departments/organisation and reputable
corporations. These customers have established good track
record with the Group and have no history of default payments.
On this basis, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of the trade receivables as at
31 March 2010. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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20. ESG R EHMEKRFIE - BN
REREZEE @

Kzt - (&)

() ANTIRFPEMZFABENEES
Wz REPERE N LRIBERS
WRE GRS - REHBEH
586,000/8 T 2 R E A DN =&
A (CZETNF : 265,000 TEBH
=718 A 5.96,0008 TTE B H — 5
L) - RE 22 RERBUFEM
SRERELCENTE - ZERFHE
FEEZSNEERY - WEHERR
ALk o Bt BEERRBARE
E_T-TF=A=+—HHEKIR
BRORELRERE - AEELES
ZEEAFAERS -

) RZZE-ZF=A=+—HBHHHEME
WHIBEEEEZNTEED BRHHNTE
Nk - AREEZEDBEBHDREILER
HIZEBRR - MRSHERAKER
T BRS - WEAR ALK - Ftt -
BAR LS EAMEL R ERERE -

RAFREE - AEEE A —IRER
FB=NHTEHE2ERYE - ZFE=S
RIBENEE T A AL B2 &
17(Q)F i Z 3Bh » 3% 5 =75 B IEHA
o REREMBMNREL - EEER
EARRIEH 2 BB S -

d EFERR BHREMEKFIECH
BREEBKRE TR 2 REEEER
REHRE  ARZSHRIAELRFH
88 o

R-E—ZTF=F=1+—HAEKRE
I Z A EEEA27,650,000% 7T
(ZZZNFE : 17,716,000/87T) ° A
REDRBEATELRSMTAZT
SRR E 2RSS RET °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

Retention monies withheld by customers of contract works are
released after the completion of maintenance period of the
relevant contract or in accordance with the terms specified in
the relevant contract. As at the reporting date, retention monies
amounting to HK$586,000 was past due for less than 3 months
(2009: HK$265,000 was past due for 4 to 6 months and
HK$96,000 was past due for over one year). Retention monies
are mainly due from government departments/organisation and
reputable corporations. These customers have established good
track record with the Group and have no history of default
payments. On this basis, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the retention
receivables as at 31 March 2010. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Other receivables as at 31 March 2010 mainly comprise the
advance payments to the principal sub-contractors. The Group
has established long business relationship with these sub-
contractors which provide on-going sub-contracting services
to the Group and have no history of default payments.
Accordingly, impairment allowance is not necessary in respect
of these balances.

During the current financial year, the Group made full provision
for a balance due from a third party who assisted the Group in
the potential acquisitions as mentioned in note 17(c). Payment
from the third party has been delayed and having considered
the financial position of the third party, the Directors have made
full provision for the balance.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables excluding retention receivables approximate
their fair values because these balances have short maturity
period on inception.

The fair value of the retention receivables as at 31 March 2010
was estimated to be HK$27,650,000 (2009: HK$17,716,000).
The fair value is determined based on cash flow discounted at
market interest rates of comparable financial instruments.
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21. 2EFRITER 21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
AEE
The Group
—2-2F “EThF
2010 2009
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$’000

FREE TIRITER (Kf7£24)  Bank deposits pledged against certain

k- BARBEAZ bank loans (note 24) and

RITIE R (M 7£33) performance bonds (note 33) 35,320 32,297
W ETAERBEEERE N Z Less: Pledged bank deposit included

DR ITER under non-current assets - (5,000)

STARBEEENZ Pledged bank deposits included under

SEARITER current assets 35,320 27,297
B R ITERE BT AEERM - I Pledged bank deposits are all denominated in HK$, earn
ZETEFFR0OIER0AE (TN interest at fixed rate ranged from 0.01% to 0.1% (2009: 0.05%
F : 0.05[EF2.49F) BEFE - F15 to 2.49%) per annum and have maturity period of one month
HR—EA(ZZEZNAFE : —EA) 5 (2009: one month) on average. The Directors consider that
B - BEERA ARRERTERS the carrying amounts of these bank deposits approximate their
EEER AR FEECRABEEARR fair values because of their short maturity period on inception.
BiEAE o
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22 BITHEERRE 22. CASH AT BANKS AND IN HAND
rEE
The Group
—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
FExT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ROTEFNRIRS Cash at banks and in hand 83,407 60,757
BARITER Short-term bank deposits 5,906 3,000
89,313 63,757
AT

The Company
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FExT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEGFRERS Cash at banks and in hand 1,443 568
RZEBE—ZFF=F=+—H " ' UAR As at 31 March 2010, cash balance of the Group denominated
B (TAR®E]D JENAREEIR &R in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to HK$7,278,000 (2009:
B7,278,0008 L (ZEZNF ¢ HK$3,521,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
3,521,000/ 7C) - AR HA R currencies. Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based

BMAEHMER « RITEFIZTHIR]T on daily bank deposit rates.

FRM R EZF B RRIFE ©
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23. EG RHMENFIE 23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
B REMENRIBEENREZAH Details of the trade and other payables including the ageing
2B SRENFIR) 2RI DT analysis of trade payables (based on invoice date) are as
follows:
AEE
The Group

—2-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET TFAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5 N RIBRER Trade payables aged
=®ARA Within 3 months 58,680 41,243
Pz 7 fE A 4 to 6 months 10,977 7,128
+t= @A 7 to 9 months 1,264 508
+TE+ZEH 10 to 12 months 74 1,418
—FEE Over 1 year 2,041 897
73,036 51,194
FEHR B 5B (fi 7t (a)) Retention payables (note (a)) 1,679 1,805
HibESERETER Other payables and accruals 12,260 10,874
86,975 63,873

Kiat - Notes:

(a) AEEBHZRBSHREBELZR (@)  Retention monies withheld by the Group are released after the
EHSEREBSIN - REFRAH - REB completion of maintenance period of the relevant contract. As
£1,679,0008 T (ZEZTNF : at the reporting date, retention monies of HK$1,679,000 (2009:
1,805,000/ 7T) 2 BREQiEB R —4F » H HK$1,805,000) were aged over one year, of which HK$12,000
F12,00087C (ZETNF : B)ER (2009: nil) was past due for less than 3 months.
=@ R REE -

b) HERRSPEGTZEERBRER (o)  Credit period granted by suppliers and sub-contractors is
30260H - normally 30 to 60 days.

(0 HREZREMENRIEBEBEE - (c)  Trade and other payables are short term and hence the Directors
ANEERE  BHREMEMNZRE consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables
ZIREERFEZAABEEE - approximate their fair values.
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24. B8 24. BORROWINGS
rEE
The Group
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
FET T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
E Current
RITER - B (ffaE@@)  Bank loans, secured (note (a)) 104,990 141,771
R17E L - B (FfaE(@))  Bank overdraft, secured (note (a)) 1,761 =
REMRE&E (MEDb) Finance lease liabilities (note (b)) 606 2,363
107,357 144,134
e ED Non-current
RITER - B (ffaE@@)  Bank loans, secured (note (a)) - 15,000
BEMEBE (MiFDb) Finance lease liabilities (note (b)) 372 201
372 15,201
BB Total borrowings 107,729 159,335
DITAT : Analysed into:
RUATEBREEZRITER Bank loans and overdraft repayable
REX
R—FRA Within one year 106,751 141,771
REZF In the second year - 15,000
106,751 156,771
HMEEEZEBE Other borrowings repayable
R—FR Within one year 606 2,363
RE_F In the second year 372 201
978 2,564
107,729 159,335
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HidE -

(a) RITEFRZER106,751,000% 7T (=
TR 156,771,000/ 7T) HAR
A)E A SRR (EIRR (H72233) -
H1106,751,000/8 7 (ZZZF N4 -
123,771,000/ 7T) # — 2 LASRITIE K
35,320,000 (ZEZ N F -
32,297,000/ 7T) (MfzF21) 2 #ECE
R o BEAN - SRITERT7,478,000%
T (CZEZTNLE : 81,421,000/ 7T) &
ETFEARIRAHZIWALEER -

b) AEEHEETRERMESE mMZE
HERBARENE  FHHEH
ANEZTREATE (ZEZTLF :
AE=ZtWMEAAR) - R=T—ZTF=
B=+—8 BEREE KKK
RHESHEEREBENT
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24. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Bank loans and overdraft amounting to HK$106,751,000 (2009:
HK$156,771,000) are secured by the corporate guarantees
issued by the Company (note 33) and of which HK$106,751,000
(2009: HK$123,771,000) are further secured by charges over
bank deposits amounting to HK$35,320,000 (2009:
HK$32,297,000) (note 21). In addition, bank loans amounting
to HK$77,478,000 (2009: HK$81,421,000) is secured by the
proceeds on certain civil engineering contracts.

(b)  The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles and machinery
and these leases are classified as finance leases having
remaining lease terms ranging from six to twenty-five months
(2009: five months to twenty-four months). As at 31 March 2010,
the total future minimum lease payments under finance leases
and their present values were as follows:

AEHE
The Group
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
FET FHIT
HK$000 HK$'000
SEHESHEE Total minimum lease payments
R—FREIH Due within one year 652 2,399
R ZFF 8 Due in the second year 371 207
RE=ZFRFEH Due in the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEEMF) 13 =
1,036 2,606
B BEREE Less: future finance charges on
RNIRES 75 & A finance leases (58) (42)
MEHEABZHE Present value of finance lease liabilities 978 2,564
BmEHEBECEE Present value of finance lease liabilities
R—F A EH Due within one year 606 2,363
REZFEIH Due in the second year 359 201
RE=ZFRFEH Due in the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BIEERMF) 13 =
978 2,564
B B AREN B E MR Less: Current portion due within one year
—F ARz B H included under current liabilities (606) (2,363)
PIASERBABZ Non-current portion included under
IEmBNEL 1D non-current liabilities 372 201

REHEREER LAHREEFE
o RESNAEERE NHER
HEBEZRANBERS THAA -

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured by the underlying assets
as the rights to the leased asset would be reverted to the lessor in the
event of default by repayment by the Group.
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24, BE &)
Kiat : (&)
) EBREEZEMEE :

24. BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c)  Other information about the borrowings:

RELNBEBREFR R
Effective interest rate per annum at year end
—EB-ZF —TENF
REEY 2010 2009
Original EEHR=E & 7 K & F B A Z & 7€ Fl) 2=
currency Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate
RITERRFEX BT 1.60% - 2.33% - 1.40% - 3.20% -
Bank loans and overdraft HK$
BMEHEERE BT - 2.80% -4.00%  2.02% -2.09% 3.25% - 4.00%
Finance lease liabilities HK$
BEERE - AREZRBEIEREE In the opinion of the Directors, the carrying amounts of the
BEVEmMERETIREBRIEZ AR Group’s current and non-current borrowings approximate their
BIEE - ERBEEZARBETIRE fair values of comparable financial instruments. The fair values
TEHARRB S REBER MG RTE - of the non-current borrowings are calculated by discounting their
expected future cash flow at market rate.
() RZZFE—ZF=A=+—H ' F&E (d)  Asat 31 March 2010, the Group had available bank facilities of
> AT E)FB4R 1T R & %8 /237,035,000 HK$237,035,000 (2009: HK$268,431,000), out of which
BIL(ZEZNLF : 268,431,000/ HK$130,284,000 (2009: HK$111,666,000) was not utilised.

7T) © E R 130,284,0008 7T (ZEZ
JLE + 111,666,000/ T) W ESH A ©

25. JEAERIH
EEBEREEBMT :

25. DEFERRED TAX

The movement of the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

REE
The Group
—g-%E | -—TEAF
2010 2009
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZETAE /ZZTZT/N\F At 1 April 2009/2008
mAE—H 3,684 3,043
EEE HEE (H:F29) Arising from business combination
(note 29) - 514
Yz = AR Charged to profit or loss
(KyaE9) (note 9) 2,000 127
RZZE—ZFF/ZFTZTNF At 31 March 2010/2009
=A=+—H 5,684 3,684
BEFHBEEEEZZREARBITERE The deferred tax liabilities mainly represent the tax effects of
e e iTEMEE CERRE = taxable temporary differences arising as a result of tax

BIBBRE -
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IR () 25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

HRERER - HEEEEE 8
& AR RMERBEF AT AEER S E
B AHASEYARBTEERY
11,738,000 BT (ZE T NF « &) IE
RIELERIBEE - BEBRITBE © %
EMIBEEETSEE -

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of tax losses of approximately HK$11,738,000 (2009: nil) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant group
entities in foreseeable future. These tax losses do not expire
under current tax legislation.

fi% Z< 26. SHARE CAPITAL
EEREAR
EE Number of @
Par value  Ordinary shares Total
B TAEL
HK$ HK$’000
EE Authorised
RZBENFE=A=+—BK At 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010
—E-TF=A=1+—H 0.05 2,000,000,000 100,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid
RZZEZEN\FNA—H At 1 April 2008 0.05 930,780,000 46,539
BERG (KEE) Repurchase of shares (note (a)) 0.05 (129,800,000) (6,490)
RZZETAFE=A=1t—-HEK At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009
“EENFRNA—H 0.05 800,980,000 40,049
RfTEEREn TR M Shares issued upon exercise of share options 0.05 24,900,000 1,245
R-ZE-Z£=A=+-H At 31 March 2010 0.05 825,880,000 41,294
Hiat - Notes:

(@ MNE-—HMBFE ARARBELZAR
AE BRI

(@) During last financial year, the Company repurchased its own
ordinary shares and the details are as follows:

BE RO EE ENERER
Bl #8 75 3% Number of Price paid per share effRE
£,/ Method of shares & 54 Aggregate
Month/Year purchase repurchased Highest Lowest price paid”
BIT BIT FHT
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
—ZT)N\FHA H§h 2 P 1,800,000 0.48 0.44 840
April 2008 On the Stock Exchange
—EENF+=A o0 (BfaE() 128,000,000 0.42 0.42 53,868
December 2008 Off-market (note (i)
129,800,000 54,708
* BREEERAX * Including direct expenses
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26. RN (&)

Kzt - (&)
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0] RZZZN\FNLA+AR K
AR BKEEEFR AR
([REKIE]) FBT S — D
FRIBINELORR S - REEE
FRL0.4278 T P BRI EE B
128,000,000 8% 78 A &) & i i%
(7128,000,0008 R 2 B8 = | )
FA It AE 4B R {B53,760,000/8
TC o AR Z 2 EH B A A
REZZZLFNARBELER
% o

128,000,0000% i% 15 & 1=l 2 X,
BRELEAEESE THEAR
(N Fi3E30FTIL) 2 B —R SR

i) BwREMPEE HER
6,490,000% 7T & Bl A% 7 [ (&
Z2RBREAENEEABR
B -

AR ZBRAEBRFER_E—ZF=
B =+—HEE41,294,000 7T (=
T TN ¢ 40,049,000 7T) Z B2
LAY o FTA AR LB AR TE IR IR S
FEREFRAEZAEREER ¥R
ARARIBEAE EFRER—F -

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

(i) The Company made an off-market repurchases by entering
into an agreement with China Water Affairs Group Limited
(“China Water”) on 18 September 2008 to repurchase from
China Water 128,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “128M Shares Repurchase”) at the repurchase price
of HK$0.42 per share, giving rise to the total consideration
of HK$53,760,000. Those shares were subscribed by the
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Water in June 2007 .

The consideration for the 128M Shares Repurchase was
offset against the consideration for another transaction
regarding the disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Group
as mentioned in note 30.

(i) As a result of the share repurchases, an amount equivalent
to the par value of the shares repurchased of
HK$6,490,000 was transferred from retained profits to
the capital redemption reserve.

The share capital of the Company only comprises of fully paid
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$41,294,000 as at
31 March 2010 (2009: HK$40,049,000). All fully paid ordinary
shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and to the
repayment of capital and represent one vote to shareholders’
meetings of the Company.
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ARRBBERZEBRERZTEAN
F_AZTHAABBZEMRBERK
m—IERER e Bl ([Z5T &) - 5T
EEERERARAERSHEEYAR
EEEBERMAELSUELZE
Bt o T B2 BB BEBENER
BRI ZHAT ~ FERITHBIIENITES
IAEBREREE S 2 B (5
BAR)ZESE ; (i)\ANE B S (E i E
RElZHMESSREEAE ;5 (iK%
EEMEHBEARZERE « HEm -
RE--ABA BB - BAA - BE
FEER  (VEREEEERTE
E2XTEAN MZEEFTZZ AL
BREREETEER - BIEEH() - (i) Kdi)
ERZAT + RWEB) (i) Ri)yB Tz
ERALTEZERSZ QA o

Zat 8l 2 EBEFBR T

(1) ARARMBELRRSOARAR
A B TR RARNE -

@) &EFEIATEEBD ZRBET
BERTI=3FFh2&=% : ()
ARBZBHEE : (RETE
BER2HEEZ R (ARBBRFE
RITERZ B F R RATAETT
EHRRXHGEB AT (RS
B BEREORERMAER R
BRI ZWHE + R(i)B&ER
TEERSEEZAMEEDE
X5 A SRR R ME R &
BRAH 2 FHHEHE -

@) BEREARIEZA B 2GR R
BRENEAKERKZEXA
FHEETERIB105F 2 A AR 1T
1% - BEEAR E1TRERB MR LA
FEZHERR -
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution of all the then
shareholders passed on 25 February 2006. The purpose of
the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that the eligible participants have made or may make to the
business development of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include (i) the Company’s executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive Directors or a Director of an
entity in which the Group holds an interest (the “Affiliate”); (ii)
other employee or officer of the Group or any Affiliate; (iii)
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, adviser or
shareholder of or contractor to the Group or any Affiliate; (iv)
the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
persons under (i), (ii) and (iii); and (v) a company beneficially
owned by any persons under (i), (i) and iii).

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1)  Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the grant.

(2)  The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Scheme shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares; (ii) the closing
price of each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer to the eligible
participant, which must be a day on which licensed banks
are open for business in Hong Kong and the Stock
Exchange is open for business for dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); and (iii) the average closing price of each
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five consecutive Trading Days immediately
preceding the date of offer to the eligible participant.

(3)  An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during the period which shall
not be more than 10 years from the business day on
which the option is deemed to have been granted. There
is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.
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27. AR X 2@E @)

(4)
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RIBBRIETEBER  AEEX
LB E R Z B B AR LERA -
IAREEIEMBEAFER
B ftrEm K2 ABA &
AA BB BRIABRE
R IR - BB R o

KRR BIRIEZAT IS AR B
Hibst B 0 2 B AR
TERA FREITZERMHEE
A HTBBBARN QTR AR
FrEmEBARRBEETHRAZ
10% ° BRE AT PERIREAE £
BT ATEIRE LR - M E R
TR E LR B HBAKRE
RIERAE EHEZEEFHE B
ZEBBITRMHBEZ210% °

EATEZT R EMRI
BRT - ARRREZE 8 kA
REMEA R SIAERHM
RARTTE Z B EETER A T
BITZBO&SHE - AHTE
BAETHOETHROAEHK L
30% ° BRIEAISBCRALE - TR
PMERM218 B BRI AR FEEE
BER2EEZBRE(BEET
& EEHEIHERTEZER
B BETERBETRETEITL
EOESHE T REATREH
TR BB Z1% °

ZErEBREMRBE BN TN
F_A-+HA)BFRTER
BB ER -

BREY T THA AR
R ERAGREHERN -

27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

(4)

An option will lapse on expiry of the exercise period of
the option, on cessation of employment, or on cessation
to be customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant,
adviser or shareholder of or contractor to the Group or
any Affiliate.

The maximum number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. The Scheme
mandate limit may be refreshed by the shareholders in
general meeting from time to time provided always that
the Scheme mandate limit so refreshed must not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date
of approval of such refreshment by the shareholders in
general meeting.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the
maximum number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time. Unless approved by the shareholders, the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any eligible participants
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the date of adoption of the
Scheme, i.e. 25 February 2006.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Terms and conditions of the share options
granted

Details of the share options granted to certain Directors of the
Company and certain employees, sub-contractors, consultants

REFIBNT - and suppliers of the Group are as follows:
SER LA S

ZARAFARE RELHAHZ

BRE Company’s ARARE

BREZE share price  Company’s

Number of TEH {78 immediately  share price

options  Exercisable Exercise before grant on grant

BRERLAHS Options grant date granted period price date date

BT BT BT

HK$ HK$ HK$

T tF=A=+1/H 26 March 2007 38,400,000 fit&F(b) 0.445 0.415 0.445
(Hizt(a) (note (a)) note (b)

“ZZLFMANA 4 April 2007 22,300,000 [ & (b) 0.600 0.585 0.600
(Hizt(a) (note (a)) note (b)

T+ ENAT A 17 April 2007 2,400,000 fit i (b) 0.975 0.920 0.975
=) (note (a)) note (b)

“EEHERATER 17 May 2007 900,000 ft & (b) 1.420 1.425 1.420
(Hiit@) (note (a)) note (b)

“2ZtFTARR 5 Qctober 2007 12,550,000 fitat(c) 0.812 0.780 0.780
note (c)

“ZENE-ATN\R 18 February 2009 64,000,000 [ &) 0.148 0.150 0.148
note (d)

—ETNFNAZTHRA 25 August 2009 15,900,000 fiite) 0.385 0.350 0.380
note (e)
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+EMAME « —EELFEMA++
AR ET+FRA+LAREZE
fx 28 9 5 A419,200,0001 *
11,150,000 * 1,200,000 &
450,000 - HRNE —_ZEZ+F XA
+—BETRO DT - AA 7!Hxﬁ
@O 1/%57525?‘17&?&?5517 &
Tﬁ%ﬁﬂxtﬂxﬁﬁo.oaﬁm
Hx(fﬂxT’\"TﬁJ) B2 AR
Eﬁﬂx%%( H %£38,400,00017 -
22,300,000 * 2,400,00017 &
900,00017 ° ZNER P B2 O AERE T T 2
BRADNRBREEABRDOITZFE
EHFAEE -

LEMBEP T BRI - TR
WEREE B RE-TTAFAAS
+— BT -

ZEBRERTER(RESARL
AMET) RiREEE - R=TZT+
F+ A ﬂaﬁ%ﬁjmﬁﬁﬂﬂiéﬁslﬁ
7,900,0001p A Rz M EERR#EE A
E_ETAFTA=+— ETT@E ;
2,325,0001p R H B #i#E /< /& B
BEliTE  WRZZEZENFHANA
fEim + H#82,325,00015 A% B 2
B+—EEABAITE  THR=_ZF
NE+AMBRER -

RZBZENF-A+N\BREZER
BREEBESRE - TR ERERE
ERARE_T——_F-_A=+hATT
& o

e e S R VB
MR R RE=F——F/\A=
+—AfE -

:I:—?

—Z4E = A =+—HI-%FE For the year ended 31 March 2010

27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

Terms and conditions of the share options
granted (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The numbers of share options granted on 26 March 2007,
4 April 2007, 17 April 2007 and 17 May 2007 were 19,200,000,
11,150,000, 1,200,000 and 450,000 respectively. As a result
of the shares subdivision becoming effective on 11 June 2007
under which every issued and unissued ordinary share of the
Company of HK$0.1 each was subdivided into two ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each (the “Shares Subdivision”), the numbers
of share options have been adjusted to become 38,400,000,
22,300,000, 2,400,000 and 900,000 respectively. The
respective exercise price and the share price of the Company
disclosed herewith have been adjusted for the effect of Shares
Subdivision.

These share options vest on the date of grant and are exercisable
from the date of acceptance of the options up to 31 May 2009.

These share options vest upon commencement of the exercise
period which is determined by the Directors on the grant date.
Among the share options granted on 5 October 2007, 7,900,000
options are exercisable from the date of acceptance of the
options up to 31 October 2009, 2,325,000 options are
exercisable after 6 calendar months from the grant date and
expired on 4 April 2009, and the remaining 2,325,000 options
are exercisable after 12 calendar months from the grant date
and expired on 4 October 2009.

Share options granted on 18 February 2009 vest on the date of
grant and are exercisable from the date of acceptance of the
options up to 29 February 2012.

There share options vest on the date of grant and are exercisable
from the date of acceptance of the options up to 31 August
2012.
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27. URHB T2 E @) 27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
BREz2SHREMEFLEHITE Movements of the share options and their
& weighted average exercise price
RABFEEMNBREZBNT : The movements of the share options during the current financial
year are as follows:
BREHE
Number of share options
R-ZENF R-Z-%%
MRER L AH mMA—H =B=t-H
ARA Options grant At 1 April 2R [=EoK;d 28K At 31 March
Grantees date 2009 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2010
T4 T4 T4 T4 T4
’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
i TS+ ENATER 1,200 = - (1,200) -
Directors 17 April 2007
—ETHE-A+\R 8,000 = (8,000) = =
18 February 2009
“ETAENAZTHHA - 4,800 (1,600) — 3,200
25 August 2009
9,200 4,800 (9,600) (1,200) 3,200
ES —ZE+FMHANA 1,700 - - (1,700) -
Employees 4 April 2007
—ZTLEFA+LA 400 = = (400) =
17 May 2007
—ZZLE+ARA 2,050 = = (2,050) =
5 October 2007
—EZHhE-A+N\A 8,000 = (8,000) = =
18 February 2009
“ZThENA-+EA - 9,300 (7,300) (300) 1,700
25 August 2009
12,150 9,300 (15,300) (4,450) 1,700
RS E Mt e —TTLF=A=1KH 9,000 - - (9,000) -
Suppliers of services or goods 26 March 2007
T+ ENANA 13,400 = - (13,400) -
4 April 2007
“ZStF+AAA 8,500 - - (8,500) =
5 October 2007
“TENF-ATNA 48,000 — - - 48,000
18 February 2009
ZEENFENAZTHA = 1,800 = - 1,800
25 August 2009
78,900 1,800 = (30,900) 49,800
&t 100,250 15,900 (24,900) (36,550) 54,700
Total
MEFHATHEE(BRER) 0.328 0.385 0.233 0.643 0177

Weighed average exercise
price (HK$ per share)
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HE-—ZT-—FTF= F=+—H ILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010
27. URGB 2w E @ 27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
BRE2EHREMETLHITE Movements of the share options and their
8 @) weighted average exercise price (Continued)
RE—HMBFENBREZENOT The movements of the share options during last financial year
are as follows:
BEREHE
Number of share options
R=ZZENF R-ZBZhE
BRERL A S mA—H =A=t-H
ARA Options grant At 1 April BRHE EEiRid 2Rk At 31 March
Grantees date 2008 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2009
T4 T4 T4 T4 T4
000 000 000 000 000
% TS+ FNATEA 1,200 - - - 1,200
Directors 17 April 2007
“EZAE-ATNR - 8,000 - - 8,000
18 February 2009
1,200 8,000 - - 9,200
E& “ZT+FMANA 1,700 - - - 1,700
Employees 4 April 2007
“ETtFNA+TLA 300 - - (300) -
17 April 2007
“EZLFERAT LA 440 - - (40) 400
17 May 2007
—ERLE+ARA 3,800 - = (1,750) 2,050
5 October 2007
“EEAF-ATNA - 8,000 - - 8,000
18 February 2009
6,240 8,000 - (2,090) 12,150
PRk & m ik e Sy Il = 9,000 = = = 9,000
Suppliers of services or goods 26 March 2007
TS+ FNANA 13,400 = = = 13,400
4 April 2007
“ZZ+FTARA 8,750 - - (250) 8,500
5 October 2007
“EENEZATNH - 48,000 - - 48,000
18 February 2009
31,150 48,000 - (250) 78,900
CE 38,590 64,000 - (2,340) 100,250
Total
MEFHITEE (BRET) 0.657 0.148 - 0.843 0.328
Weighed average exercise
price (HK$ per share)
RZE—ZTF=RA=1T—HHRITE The exercise prices of the outstanding share options as at
Zﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁu T H%0.148% 7T 31 March 2010 range from HK$0.148 to HK$0.385 (2009:
Z0.385B L (ZEZNLF : 01488 T HK$0.148 to HK$1.420) per share and their weighted average
£1.420%7T) - ﬁﬁ@:%—;ﬁiiﬂ remaining contractual life as at 31 March 2010 is 1.98 years
= t—HMMEFEERGENFRA (2008: 1.97 years).

1.98F (ZZEZ/)\F : 1.974F)
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REFBRFECRHBREND
R{E

RAFEEREZERENAAEAR
FR%0.144E T (ZZZNF © 0.04678
) cBTEE  EERSEHZIER
BHAAREDNRERTZLE BHIEN
BaITAARBEMEE - XHERE
FTHEBRRBBSHAER —HE
LAFE B8 TARHREEIOER
ETEBREER 2 BRENAAE
TIIRBF MR T EMERE

RAFBFERBZBEREZ R AAE
BB AEMRBAENR - RN
REBEEA ([ZEKX)FE - KAZ
BAZBEFINT

FREE BT) 0.385
Fh&ITEE (BIT) 0.385
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%) 87.04% - 102%

i M 2 (%) 0.16% - 0.522%
Hiuqﬁlm/ﬁ:(%) 0%
TEHARE AR A B (FF) 05-20

BHRBEBILD2RARA _ZEZENFN
A—BE_ZZAFNA-TN\BH
Rz EBBREZBMEE -

R EEREEBBBZEFEIN
EESRBRZBHKEE -

EHREREARAIREEEELE
BEREZ T AIEEE - TERSBIK
TRERZZERMIFLORER
it e MHIRRITE 2 Z FAHIERE
BRH - WIMAESRAZRAZH
& -
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Fair value of the share options granted during
the financial year

The fair value of the share options granted during the year is
HK$0.144 (2009: HK$0.046) per share. The fair value of the
share options granted to the Directors, employees and sub-
contractors was determined based on the fair value of the
equity instruments measured on the date of grant. Share
options granted to the sub-contractors are an incentive to them
for their continuing contribution to the Group for providing
services similar to those rendered by its employees. The fair
value of the share options granted to the consultants and
suppliers was determined based on the market price of the
services provided.

The fair value of the share options granted during the financial
year is determined by an independent valuer using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model (the “Model”). Details of the
inputs to the Model are as follows:

Share price (HK$ per share) 0.385
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 0.385
Expected volatility (%) 87.04% - 102%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.16% - 0.522%
Dividend vyield (%) 0%
Expected life of option (years) 0.5-2.0

Expected volatility is determined by reference to the weekly
share price movement of the Company for the period from
1 August 2008 to 28 August 2009.

Risk-free interests rate represents the yields to maturity of Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective terms to maturity
as at the valuation date.

The expected life of option is determined based on
management’s best estimates for the effects of non-
transferability of the options, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Expected early exercise is taking
into account by reference to the expected life of the options
and is incorporated as an input into the Model.
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27. ARG XS 2 /E @) 27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

BRENMBRE

TR S 4% () BB AR 4 S| Bz BARR 19
XA 2 f 18 52,289,0008 L (Z T F
JLEF 2,929,000 7L) - BRTFESER
EEBBRERELEARD M ZHIE
+ 582,080,000 L (ZE T NF -
733,000/ 7T) © LA R I T & R BB A i
FIT /2 A PARR 9 2.1+ 2 # (Bl §8 259,000
B (ZEZTNLF ¢ 1,098,000/87T) B,
WRATHAY - RAFBFE - I
BT o EmREEEERERE(Z
ZTZNF AR THOBREREERZ
EREMEEUARNEIN2HESE
#1,098,000/8 7T + ThHER AW & K
) ° 2,289,000/ T 2 HEHFE (==
T NF ¢ 2,929,000 7T) ThET ABERK
HHEE AR REETERUEREE
WIARN N 2R 5 - I ERERE
A& o

RE—WBRFE  BR=ZZZLF+
AEERERRRAFEHE & THER
RETE R LARR D & 1+ 2 6 18198,0007%
Lo BTREBZEREEE ZUKRG
Xt 2 % 1E A153,000/8 7T ¢ Mm% T
BZEREEEZ ARG I 2 wmE
81 A45,0005 7T  ABRD T 2 fi(E
ZEHMEBEHBRATHRASL - HEH
©%8198,000/8 LAt A MEARAE (1 -

RAMBEE  RTEE - EEKE
[ 2.36,550,00017 B AR #E B 108 Uk -
AL BE A 4 7 2 4,952,00078 T B A B
RiEFEEREERBRA - R E—8
WEE - HTRER&ES 22,340,000
MERED LU - HEBRERS
343,000/ 7L E HIB IR EFHEERER

Bim Al o
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Financial effect of the share options

The amount of share-based compensation arising from granting
share options during the year was HK$2,289,000 (2009:
HK$2,929,000). Share-based compensation in respect of share
options granted to the Directors and employees amounting to
HK$2,030,000 (2009: HK$733,000) and to consultants
amounting to HK$259,000 (2009: HK$1,098,000) was
recognised as administrative expenses. No share options are
granted to sub-contractors and suppliers during the current
financial year (2009: share-based compensation arising from
granting of share options to sub-contractors and suppliers
amounted to HK$1,098,000 which was recognised in cost of
revenue). The corresponding amount of HK$2,289,000 (2009:
HK$2,929,000) has been credited to the share option reserve.
No liabilities were recognised as those are equity-settled share-
based payment transactions.

During last financial year, shares-based compensations
amounting to HK$198,000 was recognised in respect of certain
share options granted on 5 October 2007 which become
vested in the same year. The amount of share-based
compensation arising from the share options granted to
employees was HK$153,000 whereas those arising from the
share options granted to consultants was HK$45,000. The
entire amount of share-based compensation was recognised
as administrative expenses. The corresponding amount of
HK$198,000 was credited to the share option reserve.

During the current financial year, 36,550,000 share options
which were granted to Directors, employees and consultants
were forfeited and the corresponding share option expense of
HK$4,952,000 was transferred from share option reserve to
retained profits. During last financial year, 2,340,000 share
options which were granted to consultants and employees were
forfeited and the corresponding share option expense of
HK$343,000 was transferred from share option reserve to
retained profits.
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27. UG 2@EE @ 27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
BRENBEEZE (&) Financial effect of the share options (Continued)
R-E—FEFE=F=1+—HHERTER The number of outstanding share options which are exercisable
A] 171 2 S AR 2 B /354,700,00017 as at 31 March 2010 was 54,700,000 (2009: 100,250,000)

—ZTAF ¢ 100,250,0001) ' 15& which represent approximately 6.6% (2009: 12.5%) of the
BARARIEZITRN46.6% (ZFF Company'’s shares in issue on that date. The exercise in full of
F :12.5%) ° Wiz FEREDESIETT these share options would result in the issue of 54,700,000
- K EH ARG HEEIET (2009: 100,250,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
54,700,000k (ZZEEZ N F : including additional share capital of HK$2,735,000 (2009:
100,250,0000%) & @ A% - I3 1N HK$5,013,000) and share premium of HK$6,949,000 (2009:
2,735,000 T (ZFZ N F : HK$27,829,000).

5,013,000/ 7T) 2 B 16,949,000/ 7T
(=T N : 27,829,000 7T) 2 A% (7

g e
28. & 1E 28. RESERVES

AEHE The Group
—g-2F | —TTNF
2010 2009
FTHExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
& mE (F7 @) Share premium (note (a)) 213,742 207,178
o EE (BiFb) Merger reserve (note (b)) 13,805 13,805
RS (M) Share option reserve (note (d)) 3,132 7,809
BARER B (it E) Capital redemption reserve (note (e)) 6,629 6,629
b 5 R i (HTaz() Translation reserve (note (1)) 575 517
R85 A Retained profits 84,829 106,893
322,712 342,831
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28. f#fE @ 28. RESERVES (continued)
¥ NN The Company
REER/
EXEE  (RHER)
BRERE e Retained
RAEE HABH Share Capital profits/
Share  Contributed option  redemption (Accumulated 4%
premium surplus reserve reserve losses) Total

TR T TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

RZST\ERA—-H At 1 April 2008 255,396 76,249 5,025 139 1,636 338,445
AEEEH Proft for the year - - - - 9,702 9,702
BEEERL ERE Share options granted in
(Fizor) previous years (note 27) - - 198 - - 198
RERRL 2B R Share options granted in
(Fiztor) current year (note 27) - - 2,929 - - 2,929
Rl e (Hitor) Share options forfeited (note 27) - - (343) - 31 (312)
BERR (FiE26() Repurchase of shares (note 26(a))  (48,218) - - 6,490 (6,490) (48,218
RZEEAF=A=1T—HRk At31 March 2009 and
“ZENEFRA-H 1 April 2009 207,178 76,249 7,809 6,629 4,879 302,744
AEEER Loss for the year - - - - (9,198) (9,198)
BERTHRS (A1) Interim dlvidend declared (note 11) - - - - 9,775) (9,775)
REERH 2B (H{:#27)  Share options granted in current
years (note 27) - - 2,289 - - 2,289
R BIRE (Frator) Share options forfeited (note 27) - - (4.952) - 1,678 (3,274)
RTEEREMET2RG  Sharesissued upon exercise of
share options 6,564 - (2,014) - - 4,550
W-E-Z£=F=1-H At 31 March 2010 213,742 76,249 3,132 6,629 (12,416) 287,336
Hiat - Notes:
(a) WRERESHESEMFE22ERAIE (@) Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
(—NAR—FEBIHEN - &ERE RiE consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
i) ARBRDBRERCESAH the share premium account of the Company are distributable
DIRTARBIRE - HBEREZEDIK to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
RERAHR - ARRIZBHRENEER following the date on which a dividend is proposed to be
RBEEXEBBEPE IR ZES - distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts

as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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(b) AKEZAGREREREAEERA
R EERE R P LT RTHETT 2 BT
BBARZRARERESNAR
BAIBETIMERZ RAEEZZR °

€) ARRZBABBEREAEENRA
RAEMD R P LW AT T 2 B8
PRI B R R 2 REKRABNAR
AIAMER 7 R AN (B 2 Z 58

d BEREREEEERLEREZAA
18 - BRAFFHIEE M 53 16Tt 3L A
Befn A Z F E R F R GR -

() BEABROREREERAFREENME
ERBEBRMHEEZEE -

 ELREREMAEREMES 1287
Z BT BORIAE SN ETE B B TS R
FREEAEHIME 5 258 -

op

RBEot

R-ZENEMA-t+hIB A&EE
H—BvE=F (EH))Tx—mHR
HEEHZ ((RESEHR]) B
- AEEREBEEMESIRAZSLE
A — [ P B 1 375 37 55 71 2R Uk 3% R |
FKBRARE (AIEE &L O A H
RKRAT]) ([FEHEBRAK]) 283.33%
Rz - REARARKS500,0007T
(FBER#570,0008 L) * MIBEH R
A (TEHKRBEE]) - 38 E kK
TEHETEEREEERMBENEST
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29.

HE-—T—TF= =+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 March 2010

RESERVES (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the aggregate share capital of
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the
reorganisation of the Group taken place before the listing of
Company on the Stock Exchange.

(c)  Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the costs of investment in subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company in
exchange pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group taken
place before the listing of Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange.

(d)  Share option reserve represents the fair value of share options
granted as further explained in the accounting policy adopted
for share-based compensation in note 3.16.

(e)  Capital redemption reserve represents the transfer from retained
profits of the amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
repurchased.

() Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
in note 3.12.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 29 April 2008, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) under which the Group
agreed to buy and the Vendor agreed to sell 83.33% equity
interest in a PRC entity, /5 78 7 2R 15 % B 5 3Rk B BR A A)
(previously known as )& #1581 HEM 52Kk A R]) (“FEF
RIK"), at the consideration of RMB500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$570,000) which was satisfied by way of cash
(the “Qingxin Acquisition”). Z% #1 5 587K is principally engaged
in provision of water supply services in certain areas of Qingxin
County, Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. Further
details about the Qingxin Acquisition were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 May 2008.
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290, ¥%50F @ 29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
BEARKZABAEERABERNE The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of % &5
WIEEEA R AR EEEEEH 77K at the date of Qingxin Acquisition and the corresponding
WHEEIER 2 EAEKREERT ¢ carrying amounts immediately before the Qingxin Acquisition

are as follows:

REHKESEAY
On the date of the Qingxin Acquisition
ARBERE
HRE{E Fair value ARE
Carrying amount adjustments Fair value
FHET FAET FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERN &L Property, plant and equipment 7,740 2,018 9,758
B L E IR Prepaid land lease payments 108 40 148
H A fEd 308 Other receivables 5 - 5
RITEARRF S Bank balances and cash 19 - 19
H & 1 5008 Other payables (7,347) = (7,347)
FEfI TR Tax payables (109) - (109)
RIEHBEE (K 2F25) Deferred tax liabilities (note 25) - (514) (514)
BENBERERE Total assets and liabilities 416 1,544 1,960
83.33% 2 B i o 34 7 Fair value of identifiable assets
EENBBZRAE and liabilities acquired - 83.33% 1,632
BHEBAHREZSE Excess over the cost of business
(K1at5) combination (note 5) (945)
REN AN Bz Total cost of investment * 687
RUATARLZA Satisfied by:
Re Cash 687
BHMEFEEEL Net cash outflow arising on
ReRLFEIMMT the Qingxin Acquisition:
AR Cost of investment 687
P 2 RITH R KT & Bank balances and cash acquired (19)
668
B 8 T B B IE 2 M AR R AR # including incidental costs for the Qingxin Acquisition
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AEBAEZERGHIKZAHBIEE
RBEZRRERGESNEREREZ
HRBEARKOFR-—EBEERRE
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TRREER - AetaxitE 2 HKE
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BRKR Al R AR KA R G EF] -

EHEE RN BB ERREEZE
ZENF—A=+—HEELEZKHEEK
BEFED A A418,000% T &
267,000 7T - BB MWIBEER T
ZENFHNA—HBEK  BIAEEEE
—ZEENF=A=+—RHLEFEZEK
@ R AR 5 Bl 2661,401,00078 7T &
5,956,000 7T ° It EHEE ERHE M
ARz Y TIRREFTREFTEER
—ZEENFHA-—BEKAUAEER
B ER s s RIEEEE  TEE
FAYETERI R R 4R -

HEME A
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EHE]) 222 ETRA - AT
Bk %588 5 B B e B 0 tH B SE Ak B
REAEERELEZABEME  AE
REH(THESHE]) -

BE T B A R EKE (RD)ARA
Fl ([BERD]) Z100%M# - BHE &
DEBREEELHREM B KRR
%% o
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HE-—T—TF= =+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 March 2010

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The excess of the Group’s interests in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of % % & 37K over the cost
of investment was attributable to the fact that % 8 &5 227K had
been operating at net loss in recent years and it was expected
on the date of acquisition that % £ 5 3& 7K would continue to
make loss in the coming year. However, with the rapid
expansion of the industrial sector in Qingyuan City and thus
expected growth in demand of water supply in the region,
management was of the opinion that %% 81§ 37K would
become profit making in the foreseeable future.

Revenue and net loss generated by % B & /K after the
Qingxin Acquisition and up to 31 March 2009 amounted to
HK$418,000 and HK$267,000 respectively. Had the Qingxin
Acquisition been taken place on 1 April 2008, the revenue and
net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 would
have been HK$661,401,000 and HK$5,956,000 respectively.
These pro forma information are for illustrative purposes only
and are not necessarily an indication of revenue and result of
operation of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the Qingxin Acquisition been completed on 1 April 2008,
nor are they intended to be a projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 September 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
with China Water for the disposal of entire issued capital of its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Ming Hing Waterworks
Engineering (PRC) Limited (“MH PRC”), and to assign to China
Water all obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred by
MH PRC to the Group on the completion date of the disposal
(the “Disposal”).

MH PRC has 100% equity interests in Ming Hing Waterworks
(Changsha) Company Limited (“MH Changsha”) which is
principally engaged in the provision of water supply services in
Ningxiang County.
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30. HEME DA @ 30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B & AR B % AR R R 0 A B 18 H R The net assets of MH PRC and MH Changsha at the date of

ZEEFERAT : the Disposal were as follows:
FHET

HK$'000
BEHEZEEFE Net assets disposed of:
L = Property, plant and equipment 80,244
TEf T A & FRIE Prepaid land lease payments 22,656
FE Inventories 431
B 5 REH b R EIA - Trade and other receivables,

R RBEREZS prepayment and deposits 11,307
IRITEBR KRS Bank balances and cash 4,201
FER S B R RIFIA Amounts due to group companies (43,175)
B 5 K H A e FRIE Trade and other payables (33,995)
BE Borrowings (31,357)
FEAS 718 Tax payables (897)

9,415

HEETHREKRE 2 &S Debts assigned to China Water 43,175

BEORE Release of translation reserve (3,646)

48,944

HESHELE Z AR Incidental costs incurred for the Disposall 1,400

50,344

HEMB AR 2 W (B7E5) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) 3,416

BRE Total consideration 53,760
HEZTBEELEZEESREFEE ©  Net cash outflow arising from the Disposal:

HEZRITESRRIAS Bank balances and cash disposed of (4,201)

B FIEE A 2 M FE R AR Incidental cost incurred for the Disposal (1,400)

(5,601)
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& =18 2 KRB L& 1% € /58,760,000
BT 2R EFERREEED
EERBEERZAREEE - 18
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2R —RHREZEHEH (I FE26(a)
Frat) o % E I8 &% 128,000,0003% f%
MDIEEZ#E— P BEN AT AH
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

31.

The consideration for the Disposal was agreed at
HK$53,760,000 which was determined by reference to the then
fair value of the assets and liabilities of MH PRC and MH
Changsha. The consideration for the Disposal was entirely
offset against the consideration for the another transaction,
i.e. the 128M Shares Repurchase as mentioned in note 26(a).
Further details about the Disposal and the 128M Shares
Repurchase were set out in the circular of the Company dated
3 November 2008.

COMMITMENTS
The Group
The future aggregate minimum lease rental payable under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings
was as follows:

—E-ZF —ZETNF

2010 2009

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

—F RN Within one year 1,450 1,523
FE_EEFRE In the second to fifth years,

(BIEERME) inclusive - 1,450

1,450 2,973

AEERBLEHEHRESETYE -
ZEHENPREME=F (ZTFN
FME=F) LFIARZAHE
EEMERBHERGRR - %FHE
TREFMHAES -

ZANNC]

R-ZE—ZFR_ZBTZNF=A=T+
— B ARRIAEAEATERAIE -

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of two to three years (2009:
two to three years), with an option to renew the leases and
renegotiate the terms at the expiry date. The leases do not
include any contingent rentals.

The Company

The Company did not have any significant commitments as at
31 March 2010 and 2009.
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32. FRABRFA 32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

RBEFHREE  A£ERMEDT
KIBE - ZRED>EEREREMER
B RAMBEE @ AQR—RHEB
ARAEAZMEREZHEWEE
E . RESFEA H£49,500,000/ 7T °
7N £ 8 2 55 498,600,00058 7T 2 Z it 5k
HOZEDEEREIRERE - ZER
EEREEETHAERR - RZZT—
ZFEZA=+—BEREEZEYHR
XBH  ARERIDEETT - RE
HMEHE  WEEBZREZENE
B - BREAEEZXEEMZER
EREAEERERG 0 TMEAED
B FARZNRAERIREE -
At BEERBZEDEEZRET
AU AEBEXATMNERTBE
2

B EXFTESN BE T -TF=H
=t—B  AEERAEEBKBET
ERHBEFBERE  BERZEM
¥R BB R R AR o PTER AR 2 B A
RREYEITRARESHE -EFRR
ERE R 2 R AR E 7% F R A
REMEL ZBX (WA EHFRE -
At > ZEFBRREBT 2RRE
ERTEHAEEZ MBHREKRE
RAMFEE -
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In prior financial years, the Group received from an ex-
subcontractor two claims in respect of two completed projects.
During the current year, a writ of summons was served to a
subsidiary of the Company as defendant in respect of those
two claims seeking the recovery of a sum of approximately
HK$9.5 million in aggregate. The Group made a counterclaim
against the ex-subcontractor for overpayment of approximately
HK$8.6 million. The claims are under mediation proceedings.
As at 31 March 2010 and up to the date of these financial
statements, the mediation proceedings are still in progress.
There is no material progress in respect of the claims
subsequent to the reporting period. Based on the advice from
the legal advisers of the Group, the Directors believe that the
Group has a good case not only to defend but also to
counterclaim the overpaid amount. Accordingly, the Directors
consider that the claims from the ex-subcontractor will unlikely
result in any material financial impact on the Group.

Apart from the above, as at 31 March 2010, a number of
lawsuits and claims arising from the normal course of business
were lodged against the Group which remain outstanding as
at the date of these financial statements. Claim amounts are
not specified in the applications of these lawsuits and claims.
In the opinion of the Directors, sufficient insurance coverage
are maintained to cover the losses, if any, arising from these
lawsuits and claims and therefore the ultimate liability under
these lawsuits and claims would not have a material adverse
impact on the financial position of the Group.
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33. ER 33. GUARANTEES
REEHRAR - RRRMEHBWERYG As at the end of each reporting period, the Company had issued
BHREMT - the following significant financial guarantees:
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
LATRIEE 2R Guarantees in respect of:
RITETETHBRARZ Credit facilities granted by banks to
EERE certain subsidiaries 106,751 156,771
RITA—RMBLAAIZ Performance bonds issued by banks
HEBEHNENRE to a subsidiary’s customer 13,000 13,000
ETHBARGIZZ Finance lease arrangements entered
MEHERHE into by certain subsidiaries 978 2,064
120,729 171,835
AAaERESTHEBRRMBITIE The Company, together with certain of its subsidiaries, issued
ERZXER - ERAMBARRLE cross guarantees to bankers as part of the security for credit
BEE 2 2 A o facilities granted to the subsidiaries.
EERREE LAV BERAEEZ In the opinion of the Directors, the financial impact arising from
M EWTEN @ B ZEHBE providing the above financial guarantees is immaterial and
(R ST AP TSR K o accordingly, they are not accounted for in these financial
statements.
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4. BERFRS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

() E—BEREEQARIZRS () Transactions with a related company

—E-FF —ZETNF
2010 2009
FER FAT
HK$°000 HK$’'000

S FEBAERATZ  Rental expenses for office premises
WAZEHE (HiE) paid to Grand Media Limited (Note) 984 984

BfaE - Note:

RNRARERRNALLE - RERELE
NERRE R ERERBR DR D B

The Directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen Chow Ming, Mr. Yuen
Wai Keung and Mr. So Yiu Cheung, have equity interests of

B34% - 33% K% 33% 2 % HE ° 34%, 33% and 33% respectively in Grand Media Limited.

(i) FEEBEAE (i) Key management personnel
BTIRABENTSEZETEE Included in staff costs are key management personnel
BABRE : compensation which comprises the following categories:

—E-EF —ZTThEF

2010 2009

FET T T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

e EZEIREWHMZ  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,228 6,490
AR E AR X1 Equity-settled share-based

Z e compensation 813 848

ER&EAR Post-employment benefits 101 93

10,142 7,431
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35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital and to support the Group’s stability
and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio, i.e. net debt to equity. Net debt includes borrowings less
cash at banks and in hand and pledged bank deposits. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.
The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and 2009
were as follows:

—HWEARBELERAT
—2-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
FERT FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
&% Debt 107,729 159,335
W RITHE T RIS Less: cash at banks and in hand
EHEMBITER and pledged bank deposits (124,633) (96,054)
FER Net debt (16,904) 63,281
BN HEmAEE Capital represented by total equity 364,268 383,182
ENCRETRS Gearing ratio TEA N/A 16.5%

AREEERARE KL ERRRA
B B 4 T 3 1 BB F I 2 B AR K
T ABA BRI RN B
&) o

The Group targets to maintain gearing ratio at a healthy level
as have achieved in the current and last financial years, which
is in line with the expected changes in economics and financial
conditions.
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36. €@ T A

(@) =T AR

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

AEHE
The Group
—E-ZF —TTNF
2010 2009
FET TAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE Financial assets
Bk EWRIE (B Loan and receivables (including cash
RITHEGEREE R at banks and in hand
BB IRIT TR and pledged bank deposits) 243,652 161,276
BEaE Financial liabilities
R G AR 7N B BR Y Financial liabilities at
B aE amortised cost 194,704 223,208
KA F]
The Company
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BiKEE Financial assets
BERREWRIE (B Loan and receivables (including cash
RITHEGENBE SR at banks and in hand
BEEBRITER and pledged bank deposits) 198,380 214,856
g =R Financial liabilities
R SH R AR F) BR Y Financial liabilities at
B aE amortised cost 9,819 7,533
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36. T@MITE ® 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) REMTEZSIWEKEE (b) Financial results by financial instruments
AEE
The Group
—2-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
THT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000

SR T EMIA () + Income, (expense), gains or (losses) on

B (BE) financial instruments:
AT & 18 2 ] B A Interest income or (expenses) on:
3 (FxZ)
B3R % e WG IE Loans and receivables 96 871
&%%&$ﬂ%m Financial liabilities at
R =N amortised cost (1,492) (6,566)
H b fE I SR IBRUE Impairment of other receivable (806) —
(c) BIKRABEEEZERBEK (c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
7N £ (& 4 SR [B) FE 5 A B RS R The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
S BREMERR (EZ A X risks which comprise market risk (mainly interest rate risk),
A) FERBERBE SR credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
c AEEMEERREESE management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
J‘Efiérﬂ iz EATR R A X - markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
WERERD I FERREANEEH on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management
BRIZFTREBEEDFZE - is carried out by key management under the policies
REERFEZEREREES approved by the board of directors. The Group does not
SHENBERNIT - AEBW & have written risk management policies. However, the
HIEEZmERREREBR A Directors and senior management of the Group meet
AEECZEERERERAET regularly to identify and evaluate risks and to formulate
Hﬂﬁiﬂgﬁ : L‘Mﬁi&?ﬁﬂl‘ﬁ strategies to manage financial risks.

I ) 7€ B I B 75 L B HO B ER
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36. M T A @) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) MHEBEE

(d) Financial risk management

miEEME - FRER

AERERESE T A2 AR ERK
REnEBEMISF RS mK
gz R iERE o NEE WA K
LERSREEAN LB RS
=M - NEEZFIRRERE
ZRERITEE - KHBHRITE
BERZEFEFE - FAKEH
HIRSMEN KRR o FIRER
FIREFHREREZRITEERKH
i 241 FE o

7442 ) A3 4 ) L PR
5 MEEEE SRR R
B BESEEEEEHAEA
OEIESEN

WABEMERERS I - TR
BUHASENS2RPBRZIFL
RITEEN MmN AIE R e
B REGT (BERX5ERL
SARNNRTINGREDHN - A A]
BEHIRBBAER)MAT ¢

Market risk - interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rate. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from bank borrowings. Majority of
the bank borrowings are arranged at variable rates which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rate and repayment terms of the bank borrowings
outstanding at year end are disclosed in note 24.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Management’s best estimate of the Group’s exposure to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates on its
floating rate bank borrowings, with all other variables held
constant, at the end of each reporting period are as
follows (in practice, the actual trading results may differ
from the sensitivity analysis below and the difference
could be material):

BR B 18 5 7 K% £R B &
#n, (R 4)

Increase/(Decrease) in
profit after tax
and retained profits

—E-ZF —ZTThF
2010 2009
FHBT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

H2E([E2E]) #7842 Increase/Decrease in basis points (“bp”)
+ 50E 2, + 50 bp (438) (663)
— 50E 2, - 50 bp 438 663
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36. €T H (&
(d) HBERBEE &)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Financial risk management (Continued)

miEEE - FMRER (&)

MRS AFEREE S 2
H A AR ER (D o FEAm S Lt SR
Bk - DRIV _-F—FF
R_EZENF=A=+—HBNE
EREEREYRFEN—ERF
7 o

ERAR

EERBESRIAZZZHTF
AIRERREIRIE SR T A 2 (8508
TEEE  BRAKEAZHTE
EEZRR - NEEEANRQ R
HERAES B BRI IEEE
ERZEANEERBRALGERE
R AR B AR R 3R BT il 5% 55 5
EZIRMEE (M1:#36(a)) K Ki7E33
FIEBEARQRELMEREE -

AEEBBBEISHT - Fit
ZHIEEERR - B2 IEFEAR
BREEFANRT  AHERE
EBReEEY W22 HiEER
R MEARE - TiEAB%
B2 EP T ERBUNEFT, g
ERadE  HitEERRK
1K - NEREEEEH AN
METREEENMG  TEERE
REWFRA RN R - FBUE
EREA B E A B R M FEIROR
WIEERRE - AR BRNE
o AEESRRBETE ik
Sh - ERERE 2 A BER%
R A R WK IR B AT e m
8 - AREOREL AT Bl £ BR AT 52
RERERBE ASEABESF
EARDHRMEEBRR TR
ERAKEmY 2 EERRA K
ZHIEA K o AEEZMH
BEVEAEHARIEMEER
FHIEB B -

Market risk - interest rate risk (Continued)

The changes in interests rates do not affect the Group’s
other components of equity. The above sensitivity analysis
is prepared based on the assumption that the borrowings
as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 existed throughout the
whole respective financial year.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets (note 36(a)) as stated in the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial
position and the amount of guarantees issued by the
Company as disclosed in note 33.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously
selecting the counterparties. Credit risk on cash and cash
equivalents (note 22) is mitigated as cash is deposited in
banks of high credit rating. Customers of engineering
contracting business are mainly government
departments/organisation and reputable corporations
and thus credit risk is considered low. Credit risk on other
loans and receivables is minimised as the Group performs
ongoing credit evaluation on the financial condition of its
debtors and tightly monitors the ageing of the receivable
balances. Follow up action is taken in case of overdue
balances. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables individually or
collectively at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level. None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.
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36. M T A @) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) BIEREBEE &) (d) Financial risk management (Continued)
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FERE (&)

R-ZE—ZTF=A=+—H &
7 M IRAFENEE% (—FF
L 58%) RAANEEAKBET
BREABRRBAMZEAEF -8
MAKEMESZE S REMBE
WHEz EERBRNE —TBE
BRI FE20 ©

REE SR

MEBEEEBRIEANEEREET
BEARNIRE X EMPEEELRS
BB ERE B EZRAR -
AEBEZBRRASEHRERER

BeFRMETEERY - AHE
RAEEGRHTRREHE - A
T ESHBBERSEMER
NEMERHMERARDESS
Ko REBBBEFEARER
MRBETHR  TRB/EAX
ERRBHECEAR

TRFAVAEEBRARRE Z 7%
BEREFAHNHRTDIIHE
HA - DREAREERNAER
BERERERZKRFEBMGAE

RIMATEREREETE

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2010, 85% (2009: 58%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
within the waterworks engineering contracting business
segment. Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are disclosed in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial assets. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants in order to maintain sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term. The liquidity policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in managing liquidity
risk.

The table below analyses the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s and the Company'’s financial
liabilities at the reporting date which are determined
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows and the
earliest date the Group and the Company may be required
to pay:
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36. I H & 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) BIEEBERE (& (d) Financial risk management (Continued)
REE SRR (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
1FERH
EEREE 1226 2E55
Within Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2 and
rEE The Group on demand 2 years 5 years
FAT FAT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZF—-ZF=H=1+—H Asat 31 March 2010
M EBE (K@) Interest-bearing
borrowings (note (a)) 107,527 384 -
2 5 e R Trade payables 73,036 - -
A 1R B8 FIE Retention payables 1,679 = =
HAth 1< R IE Other payables
KETER and accruals 12,260 = =
194,502 384 -
R-ZZEZEARE=A=+—H Asat31 March 2009
M ERE (K@) Interest-bearing
borrowings (note (a)) 144,711 15,278 -
2 5 R Trade payables 51,194 = =
e R B R IE Retention payables 1,805 = -
HAth 1< 5RIE Other payables
KETER and accruals 10,874 = =

208,584 15,278 =
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36. T@MITHE (»® 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) BIEREBEE &) (d) Financial risk management (Continued)
REE SRR (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
1FRH
EEREE 1226 2E55
Within Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2 and
AT The Company on demand 2 years 5 years
FHET FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=-ZZ—-ZF=H=+—H As at31 March 2010

H it & FRIE Other payables
RIEETE and accruals 3,061 = =
1S FfY B A 7] Amounts due to
FIH subsidiaries 6,758 - =
9,819 = -
BB I B A R Financial guarantees
issued
EROZSEHE Maximum amount
(fta(b)) guaranteed (note (b)) 120,357 372 =
R-ZZBZAE=H=+—H Asat31 March 2009
Hib A RIERERER Other payables
and accruals 872 - -
FEAT BT B A R F A Amounts due to
subsidiaries 6,661 - -
7,633 = _
BB BB ER Financial guarantees
issued
ERNEaE58E Maximum amount
(K& b)) guaranteed (note (b)) 156,634 15,201 -
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(d) HBEBRERE (&
RBETRRE (E)

HiaE -

@ KIRFEHEBEZERBH -
EEMBTIRER —T—2F

FTETEAE=A=1+—B%
KEEZEESBIESAZA
B

() AREREEZENHBERR
MiZEa3HKEE - R E AT - [
BRATAEEREE - AR
IRt AR E 2R AE
o (BB RE24(a) PR R 1T 17
REERMBARETLEAT

AR ZSHRIAR) MELSR
BRERENZEBRARRNFR
HER - Btk - AAR L ESL
SZERRT 2B EHRRAE -

37. EHMBPREBEEH

RZZEZNF+_ARHE  AEEG
I BE Well Delight Holdings Limited
([Well Delight|) z = &2 # 1Tl &<
([WEBEE]) 71— Bz ([WEBiH
&) o RIIEEIE A H - Well Delight
BEETEIZRSE RN SHERE
REBLEh R ZRARER -

WEEER -_ZE—ZF A +tHRT
o B EIEmMBE A FIHAT ¢

(@ Well DelightBE ik BAEREZ 2 &
B aa) e

—E—-ZF 53, Annual Report 2010

Fo %5 R R B =

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE=

—ZTFE = A=+—HIL%EE For the year ended 31 March 2010

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:

(@)

The interest on borrowings is calculated based on the
amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31 March 2010
and 2009 at the irrespective interest rates, taking into
account the repayment dates of the respective
borrowings.

The contractual financial guarantees provided by the
Company are disclosed in note 33. As assessed by the
Directors, it was not probable that the subsidiaries would
default the repayment of the borrowings. In addition, it
was not probable that the banks would claim the
Company for losses in respect of the guarantee contracts
due to security in place (i.e. bank deposits and proceeds
on certain civil engineering contracts of the relevant
subsidiaries as mentioned in note 24(a)) for the
borrowings. Accordingly, no provision for the Company’s
obligations under the guarantees has been made.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
(the “Acquisition Agreement”) regarding the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire issued share capital of Well Delight
Holdings Limited (“Well Delight”). As at the date of the
Acquisition, Well Delight has equity interests in certain
Mongolian companies which are principally engaged in mining
and exploration activities in Mongolia.

The following events have taken place following the completion
of the Acquisition on 17 June 2010:

(@) Well Delight has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group.
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37. ERPREEZEH »

(b)

142

ERWIESIE ZR(E - AEEE()
LAIR £ 7 157200,000,0007 7T (i)
LAZE1T 28 A R N4 E350,000,000
B ELER ((RERE]) 2
75 R 32 5350,000,0005 7T + (jif) A
RETEERRM0.22B L%
K347 78 A ]1,970,000,000/% B
HIRERSG]) 27N
433,400,000/ 7T : K (iv)LAZE1 TR
N ARE 954,100,000 7T 2 7]
BTREE((TREEE]) 2755
3 11954,100,000% 7T °

ERWEEEEEHR —IHENH - &
SEERIRERH0.1278 TThD
& N2 7]3,800,000,000 /%3 A% 17
(BRESHE]) - LEFEHIFAF
SRIBVFEEXY £451,000,0007 7T -
HEBOREBARIARESAK
B - BREEIRMETRESEE -
N R A BB E R E N
48,000,000,000/% #T A% {5+ #5%
5E A% 7K £ 100,000,000/ 7T (2 &
2,000,000,0008% & I EI{E0.057%
JT2 B 7)) #EhnZE 2,500,000,000
BT (5 450,000,000,0000% &A%
E{B0.05 8T 2k n) c KT —
TFE=A=+—H ' ARFRZE
TR AN 49 541,300,000/ 7T
% £825,900,000/% A% EI{E0.05
B - REXREEFER
BIOIRERDE - ARRZEE
1TR% AN 3% = #9329,800,00078 7T
7 /46,595,900,0000% & A% FEE
0.05% 7T 2 Ity CRET A2 B &
BEITEEREMEIT 2I’RG)

37. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (cContinued)

(b)

As the consideration for the Acquisition, the Group paid
(iy HK$200 million by way of cash; (i) HK$350 million by
issuing a promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) of
the Company with the principal amount of HK$350
million; (i) HK$433.4 million by allotment and issuing of
1,970 million shares (the “Consideration Shares”) of
the Company at an issue price of HK$0.22 per share;
and (iv) HK$954.1 million by issuing a convertible note
(the “Convertible Note”) of the Company with the
principal amount of HK$954.1 million.

As one of the conditions to the Acquisition, the Group
completed the placing (the “Placing”) of 3,800 million
new shares of the Company at HK$0.12 per share. Net
proceeds generated from the Placing amounted to
approximately HK$451 million. Part of the proceeds is
used for financing the settlement of the cash
consideration. To cater for the Placing, the authorised
share capital of the Company has increased from HK$100
million divided into 2,000 million shares of HK$0.05 each
to HK$2,500 million divided into 50,000 million shares of
HK$0.05 each by the creation of an additional 48,000
million new shares. The issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$41.3 million divided into
825.9 million shares of HK$0.05 each as at 31 March
2010. Upon completion of the Placing and issue of the
Consideration Shares, the issued share capital of the
Company has increased to approximately HK$329.8
million divided into 6,595.9 million shares of HK$0.05
each (before taking into account the shares issued upon
exercise of the share options subsequent to the reporting
date).
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37. ERHREEH @ 37. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE

REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

B EXCATio - Wi EEES
B ARE ([RARE]) 21565
NG o BIBZFIER AR -
AU EE E B e R B Bifg \ @ B
AR 2 (hERE ([ = HE
HBE)BRBRESERAIR A
TERBZ ARBEXZEEEE
BEZWHERBZAARAB (AR
B]) ~4m1,550,000,000/%
T AREIBAEREHELEE
FHR((EEEE]) - BEEEZ
KNEEER

() 2REHWEZMHHER
ERRZARBESEREZE
#1,550,000,0007% JT 1B 1K
#3,100,000,0007% 7T & =X
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Apart from the above, included in the Acquisition Agreement
are some terms and conditions relating to contingent
consideration (the “Contingent Consideration”). Under
such terms and conditions, the Company is required to issue
a compensation note (the “Compensation Note”) to the
vendor in case the fair value of certain entities subject to
the Acquisition or the fair value of the exploration licences
held by the entities (the “Fair Value”) as shown in the
valuation report to be submitted in eight months after the
completion of the Acquisition (the “Second Valuation
Report”) is not less than HK$1,550 million. The principal
amount of the Compensation Note shall be:

() the Fair Value, if such Fair Value as shown in the
Second Valuation Report is equal to or more than
HK$1,550 million but less than HK$3,100 million;
or

(i)  HK$3,100 million, if the Fair Value as shown in the
Second Valuation Report is equal to or more than
HK$3,100 million.

No payment shall be made if the Fair Value as shown in
the Second Valuation Report is less than HK$1,550
million. As at the date of these financial statements, the
determination of the Fair Value is still in progress.

The Acquisition will be accounted for in accordance with
the revised HKFRS 3. The total cost of the Acquisition
cannot be determined at this stage as the valuation of
the Promissory Note and the Convertible Note as well as
the fair value of the Contingent Consideration are still
under determination by the management. In addition, the
financial information of Well Delight and its subsidiaries
(the “Well Delight Group”) as at the date of the
Acquisition is still under preparation and the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of Well Delight Group
cannot be determined at this moment. Accordingly,
financial impact arising from the Acquisition cannot be
quantified and the related disclosures cannot be made
at this stage.
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A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is shown below. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

E4 RESULTS
BE=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March
—EERFE ZZTE+F ZTENF ZZTNF ZE-ZF
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
FET FET FET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
sz Revenue 263,768 519,944 648,475 660,870 675,959
REE Profit/(Loss)
A (E518) for the year 38,619 34,316 24,885 6,391 (17,281)
BEEREGSE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+—H
As at 31 March
BT —EELE —FTTN\EFE —_ZTTHF —ZE-BF
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
FET FET FET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
s E Total assets 210,206 356,948 773,315 612,615 568,216
FES=R Total liabilities (75,532) (196,196) (335,477) (229,433) (203,948)
B Total equity 134,674 160,752 437,838 383,182 364,268
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